VILLAGE OF OAKWQOOD
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

2024-3-26
ATTENDANCE
Erica Nikolic, President Gary V Gottschalk, Mayor
Johnnie Warren, President Pro Tem Mark Garratt, Police Department
Taunya Scruggs, Ward 1 Brian Dirocco, Fire Department
Eloise Hardin, Ward 2 James Climer, Law Director
Paggie Matlock, Ward 3 Brian Thompson, Finance Director
Mary Dawvis, Ward 4 Daniel Marinucci, Chief Bldg. Official
Candace Williams, Ward 5 Carlean Perez — Recreation Director
ABSENT

Tom Haba, Service Director

Ross Cirincione, Prosecutor

Matt Jones, Village Engineer

* Arrived after roll call

Meeting opened at 7:02pm by Nikolic
Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call taken

Motion to remove the Council Meeting Minutes of Jan. 23", 2024 off the table, made by Hardin
seconded by Davis

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Motion to approve the Council Meeting Minutes of Jan. 239, 2024, made by Hardin seconded by
Scruggs

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Motion to remove the Special Meeting Minutes of Feb. 17™, 2024 off the table, made by Hardin
seconded by Warren

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Motion to approve the Special Meeting Minutes of Feb. 17™, 2024, made by Scruggs seconded by
Hardin

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED



Nikolic: Agenda item number five, Clerk's correspondence. Joseph: None. Nikolic: Hearing
none, may we move on to departmental reports? May we hear from our Mayor, Gary Gottschalk.

Department Report

Mayor, Gottschalk| Gottschalk: Thank you, Madam Chairperson, we'll finish up with the camp.
Also, combining finance and Carlean to get that out of the way. So, with camp, I don't have
anything in front of me other than this. As you know, our camp begins usually in about the
middle of June. And, you really don't have much to be putting together yet. Because, the
Instructors, We are not going to know when they're available until sometime in May. So this is
usually put together in May and in June. The first two and a half weeks are activities. Where
you're out ziplining, horseback riding, Cedar Point, etc. And then the education component kicks
in, for about four and a half weeks. And as [ said, there's no way to know until the instructors are
available. Until you get much closer to the summertime. So, there's really not much you can do.
Other than, basically approve what has been done and making some cutbacks. All at the same
time, obviously unleashing the creativity of our kids. Particularly with respect to the Khan
Academy math website. Which would be still at high school. But that's about the only thing
we're going to be doing at the high school. Everything else will be at Mount Zion. Hardin:
Camp is under which one? Thompson: 204 Recreation. Gettschalk: But there's a camp thing
itself, right? Where's that? Hardin: Yeah, it's separate. Thompson: Oh, the full description? She
doesn’t have those details. Gottschalk: The point is, it's all going to be amended anyway.
Thompson: Yeah, okay. Gottschalk: The only thing that was an expense that wasn't there. First
of all, were cutting back. We used to go to the sports dome for the boys out in Chagrin Fall. But
we're not going to do that anymore. We're not going to use the fitness company over there near
the trailer park. We're going to be much more internally. And at the same time, we don't need
two school buses anymore. All we need is one, and just like, our own vans. Because most of the
activities are going to be in Oakwood Village. And whether it be Woodcraft... in Mount Zion,
they have four classrooms themselves that we've been using in the past. But not all the time. So,
anywhere from robotics, that extends for girls, science, technology, engineering, mathematics,
and nutrition. All of that will now be happening in four classrooms over there. And at the same
time, we now gather our youth over at the community park rather than the community center.
Because it was a mess over there. And as I said, there's no need to have two school busses going
back and forth all the time. When that isn't going to be necessary. So, we're going to be saving a
bit of money on that. And that's where we are to be able to use for seven weeks. The Mount Zion
classrooms again for them. Plus, a room where you can hold about 80 to 90 people, that'll be
$13,000. Hardin: Mayor, the fact that we were doing the budget the way we are. It has to be
acceptable, but these things that you're saying. We need to make certain that it's listed, we don't
see that. Gottschalk: What you're going to get is basically something like... let's quickly look at
this. This is the activities for the two weeks. And then these are the classroom activities okay.
Just take a quick look at that. You'll get that, but as I said, this is something that's going to be
done in the next month. month and a half. It can't be done right now anyway. Hardin: Okay, so
you went up $5,000, so we're at $95,000. Gottschalk: No, because we're cutting things back.
Davis: But in your budget you're showing... Gottschalk: It's the budget from last year, nothing
has been touched on it. Davis: Okay. Gottschalk: But it's all going to be real. As [ say, in the
next month, we're going to be reworking this thing and amending it. As we know, the teachers
will start to be available. Both for John Carroll, and at Ahuja, and things like that. Hardin: And



you're breaking it out just if you're reciting? Gottschalk: Yes, yes, as you can see it's quite
extensive. This has been one of the shames when you open up the paper. I saw Notre Dame
College is closed now after 100 years. And not just because you're paying teachers more with
higher wages. But because the enrollment shortfall. As well as kids coming out of high school,
and they are not prepared. This is why it's so important to be focusing on the programs that we
have here. And they have proven very worthwhile. But you have to have teachers that have the
track record, I think that's the key. Without a teacher being able to have that ability; it doesn't
work either. And we've been very successful working with John Carroll on that. And some of
their instructors, teachers, as well as some of the grad students. But that will be worked out
starting in about a month, a month, and a half. Nikelic: Any other questions or comments for the
Mayor? Williams: We had a question last night that you weren't available to answer. There was
a $1,295 payment to Mount Zion in the month of February for real estate taxes. Thompson: It's
for sewer assessment. Williams: Are we under contract for that? Brian wasn't able to answer last
night, but it's for the sewer assessment? Thompson: Yeah, so assessment is on the property
itself. Williams: But their property is private property, it's not on our property, correct?
Thompson: Yes. Gottschalk: Yes. Williams: [s there a contract to why we're paying them?
Gottschalk: I'll have an answer for you on that, maybe at the next meeting. Williams: Okay,
what is that payment? Is it monthly? Thompson: It's like a yearly $1200. Hardin: Mayor, did
you get the message last night or Carlean, regarding the thousand dollars cash? You didn't
advertise the cash, so you're not going to do cash? Perez: We're doing the cash. Hardin: Okay,
thank you, I wanted to make sure. Matlock: She said we are. Williams: We are, or we are not?
Perez: We are. Hardin: Okay, because when you sent it out, you did not have a cash statement
on the flier. Perez: We never have put that on. Gottschalk: No, we have in the past. But what
we clearly didn't want to have happen. Was to have people coming in from all over Cleveland
rather than just folks here. So, that's why we didn't put a thousand in there. Hardin: Okay, so
what was the...there was some sort of statement regarding the reason why we should not be still
doing cash. Did you received... Gottschalk: No, that was the thing that, we can use cash in
bingo, that we can't use. But for this, this was approved. Hardin: By? Gottschalk: Law
Director, when was it approved? Nikolic: Legislation is still work session. Climer: I wrote the
legislation for Council to approved. Gottschalk: This was a few years ago. Hardin: Before you
put the cash in. You need to go back to the Law Director and verify what we're doing. Perez: Do
we need to cancel Easter? Hardin: Not cancel it, but not put cash in the eggs. Perez: Okay, well,
let me just tell you what's happening with the eggs. We patched up 300 eggs, some of the eggs
we made tickets, and it has a dollar amount on the ticket. They come to me with that amount
inside the egg. And that's when { just give them whatever the prize is. Now, in order for that not
to happen. That means that [ have to go in and break all these eggs apart and try to find the
money. Warren: My understanding, and I just mentioned it to Councilperson Williams. Is that
that's how the process was going to be. They were going to not put cash in the eggs. They were
going to put a denomination on a sheet of paper in the egg. And then the person brings that
denomination to her for reimbursement. Williams: Last night there was a finance meeting and
Council was having some discussion. Since it is cash that we cannot account for technically. I
mean, once the little pieces of paper go in there. Carlean sits with money and is just distributed.
We really don't have a foolproof way of accounting for if Oakwood residents are receiving that
money or if someone else is. And we didn't know the process as to how Brian withdraws cash.
So, our conversation was around possibly not approving that last night. We didn't come to a
decision, but we were going to have further discussion. Matlock: Is the cash documented once



they come to you? Perez: There's a document. Thompson: [ gave a her the $1,000 in
denomination. But some of the discussions I have conveyed to the Mayor is trying to get
individuals to sign your name and address. To ensure that they're from the Village. So, I did have
that discussion. And they also want to from now, moving forward with just candy. Williams: So,
can you tell us the process for last year in regard to do getting cash? Thompson: Yeah, I got the
approval from Council, we had the legislation. So, they gave me the denominations. Okay, we
need this many five, tens, twenties. And I go to the bank, get the cash, disseminate it to Carlean.
And she'll do her process with the egg dropping. Any money left, she gave us back, and i deposit
back to the bank. The Carlean is hands oft giving the eggs. Warren: You know, the this is, I'm
not feeling well today. But this is a horrific situation that we do a reverse. And the thing is, what
[ understand is, this a program that is for the Village of Oakwood residents only. Because [ can't
see how the logical approach to a person or a kid, that brought me an egg. That wasn't restricted,
and then they say, oh, well, you're not an Oakwood resident. So, you don't get the money,
because you can't prove you're an Oakwood resident. Now, if we restricted it, and it's known that
you got to be an Oakwood residents. And | don't know how that could be. So, it's ultimately
impossible for anyone to think. That we can do a situation to where we have to verify the
recipient of the egg with the money in it. That they are not entitled to the money if they can't
prove they are Oakwood resident. Because we got it open to everyone. And I think that what we
should do. My suggestion is, that we move forward with the way that we did it now. And take
that as a lesson learned, and we will know how to improve it going forward. But we got a lot of
people depending on this process. Williams: Well, that was the conversation last night, because
we couldn't account for that process. Nikolic: Okay, let's move on, we have the legislation...
Gottschalk: One last thing on that is there will be two groupings of dropping. What were the age
groups? Perez: Wedoa71t09,10to0 12, 12 to 14. Warren: So, that don't make a difference. If
the bottom line is just who gets the eggs and do they get the money. Perez: The reason why we
do that is because there's so many kids. Warren: [ understand that part of it. All 'm focusing on,
is the activity itself, and how can it be done. Perez: Thank you. Nikolic: Okay, let’s move on, is
there any other discussion or comments for the Mayor? Hearing none, may we hear a report from
our Law Director?

Law Director, Climer| Climer: Thank you, Madam President. Last week that passed out, some
suggestions, for amendments to our ordinance. To make it easier to reschedule regular meetings.
In the event there are conflicts, not holidays. And I'd like to understand, as a consensus of
Council. If we should move forward with that. And if so, I'll draft legislation. Davis: Okay, I
missed some of what he said, I'm sorry. Climer: I passed out or emailed to people who were not
present at the last Council meeting. Some suggested revisions for our ordinance. To give Council
greater latitude to change a regular Council session. In the event of a conflict that's not a holiday.
That's the only way you can do it. Davis: Right. Climer: And [ just wanted to get the sense of
Council. As to whether they'd like to proceed with the legislation. And if so, I will draft it. I'm
not asking for a vote, but... Nikolic: Have you seen the legislation? Warren: I just glanced over
it, but we did make that request, and we would want that. I would say, I would like to see that
come into fruition. Climer: We'll get it drafted then. Nikolic: Are we hearing any objections to
the legislation that he's proposing? Hearing none... Climer: Also, I'd like to request a short
executive session. Following the regular Council meeting this evening. Nikolie: And there's one
thing I'd like for you to clarify for Council, while we're all together is the amending of agendas.



So once an agenda is posted, what is the process for amending? Is it possible to remain or not
amend? Climer: If the ordinances are not specific on the matter, then we could fall for Robert's.
I believe with Robert's, we can adopt an agenda at the beginning of the meeting, or we can move
to amend it. Nikolic: No, prior to a meeting starting? So, when we're preparing for a meeting.
This is before the meeting, and you post the notice. So, before you get to the meeting, there's a
time period. So, for general meeting it's typically 24 hours. You have to post notice in a special
meeting 24 hours. So, within that time period after posting, is there latitude to amend? Climer: 1
believe there is by motion at the meeting, and ['ll reconfirm that. But certainly, you need to give
notice of the meeting. At certain times prior to the meeting. But I believe there is an ability to
move to amend the agenda during the course of the meeting. Nikolic: Okay, special and general?
Climer: Correct, well no, not special. Special you can only discuss matters that are announced as
the purpose of the special meeting. Nikolic: Okay, so once the notice goes out for the special
meeting. What are the parameters for amending the agenda? Climer: It can be amended. That
would not be a means of doing that. You can't take a vote prior to the meeting. And you can't
depart from the announced purpose of a special meeting at a special meeting. So, you're locked
in at the special meeting. Nikolic: So, I wanted that clarification. But any agenda items going on
the meeting minutes, or the agendas need to be approved. So going forward, any items that go on
the agenda need to be approved prior to being posted. So, is there anything else? Any other
questions or comments for the Law Director? Warren: One thing to clarify, and I don't know if
there's a time limit or whatever. And it probably is, [ don't know. But the Mayor has the
opportunity to add to the agenda without the vote of Council. Nikolic: Right through the Clerk,
but this is before the agenda is posted. Warren: Okay. Nikolic: So, the period before. Warren:
So, it can be changed, right. Williams: I'm sorry, what are we talking about with the approval. Is
that in our Charter or Ordinance? What are we specifically tatking about? Nikolic: The Council
President approves the agendas. Williams: Is that per Charter? Nikolic: Yes, it's per Charter.
Williams: Okay, and so we're just verifying that? Nikolic: Right, [ wanted him to approve
because there's been confusion about amending. And [ wanted to make sure that we're all clear
on how it can be amended and when it can be amended. So, moving forward, we don't have any
confuston. Because for Tanya, it gets confusing because if some person tells her to amend it.
Then someone tells her not to amend it, it puts her in a situation where she's going back and
forth. So, I just wanted to clarify. So, our Clerk isn't put in a situation where she is caught
between two persons who may not understand the full totality of what it is. So, I asked the Law
Director to clarify. Climer: I'll put out a memo. Nikolic: Thank you. Williams: So, when a
special meeting is called, it's specifically for that purpose. And they can't be an amendment
because it's called specifically for that. Climer: Correct. Nikolic: That's what he said. Williams:
I just want to be... are you clear? There's no reason to listen to, once it's called, it's done. Joseph:
Right. Williams: Okay, thank you. Hardin: Law Director, can I have at least by the next
meeting. The time frame that we're working in regarding the Charter Review Committee. What
time frame are we working in? Climer: [ believe it's fall of 2024; I can look it up right now.
Hardin: And I believe you're right, so 1 want to be very certain, and the process please. There's a
process each Councilperson is supposed to make an appointment and so forth and so on. I'd like
that process repeated. Climer: I will put out a memo for all concerned on that as well. Hardin:
Thank you. Nikolic: Any further discussion for our Law Director? Williams: Yes, director, do
we have the... I didn't see the legislation for the work session for 2024-WS-13. Do we get that?
Was it drafted, or do we just have to have it as an item? Nikolic: It was provided. Climer: |
believe it was disturbed. Williams: 1 just didn't see it in the packet. Nikolic: Tanya, you did



included with our package. Joseph: Yeah, it should be the last piece of legislation before the
minutes. Williams: Okay, I just I didn't see it in the physical one or the digital. But I'll go
through it again, It's just it's a big package. | just wanted to make sure because we were going to
discuss it in the work session. And then the legislation for the special audit that I asked you to
draft. Did you begin drafting that? Climer: [ got that at 6:30pm, or so on Thursday night. I was
occupied all day Friday and yesterday. But yes, we will get drafted. Because we're going to get
those fees. So, I started a draft, if you could take a look at it and we'll discuss it and work session
as well. But I don't know when those fees will start. But I know that we need to have authority
for Brian to pay them. So, I am not delaying them. Nikolic: Okay, any further discussion or
comments for questions for our Law Director? Hearing none, may we hear from our Finance
Director.

Finance Director, Thompson| Thompson: Thank yvou, Madam Chairman. Just wanted to note
that, Council requested I did provide the exhibit for the 50% budget. There were a few things we
heard about highlighted in yellow, just for a quick discussion. On the first one for the Police
Department. [ was thinking because the FOP contract had been approved. 1 set their level at his
request for twenty-four, I did half of that. That's what I did on that first line. Which included
(inaudible) for his department. On the second page, I set the level at the project total that our
Engineers are discussing. And also with the ARPA funds, I got an obligation to pay one of the
vendors that's already gone through the bid process to councils that.. But I'll be needing to make
a payment. So, half of it wasn't enough for that payment request. That'll be that two fifty, so [
needed that authority. So, that's why I was making that change, to have it at that level. But
everything else, to be very clear, is 2023, no raises involved, it's last year's budget. And I just
made these notations on these three arcas. Williams: The ARPA County funds; do we already
have those? Thompson: Yes, we have those. Williams: Then the SCMR, did you take a look at
all of the projects? When exactly those payments will be due, or did you just take half?
Thompson: | just took half of the appropriations needed. Davis: Does that include monthly?
Some of them were divided monthly, like by two thousand and something, or $5,000 per month
only. Instead of being the whole amount we had to pay. Thompson: Yeah, 1.4 was taken into
account everything our engineer discussed with these projects. So, I just put that half. Williams:
For that specific number, because this is not ready to be approved right now. What we need to do
is figure out what we need to pay for June 30th, and that's the number that needs to go there. So,
if it's not, yeah, if it's not that $712,000, then we don't need to put that there. Thompson: Last
year was about 1.2, so I can change the exhibit. Williams: Because you have the exact projects,
right? Thompson: Yeah okay, and that's what I got in here now. Williams: So, we need to
figure out what that exact amount is. [ see that last year was the 1.2, 50%, It looks like it was at
$310,000 for whatever reason. But just we want to make sure what's there will get us through
June 30th. The other thing I'm seeing with the budget is that this is not at the budgetary level we
need to be at. So, you have everything in one lump sum as opposed to salary and other. And
those would be separated, which would be the big thing. You don't have any way of seeing
what's being spent on salaries. If it is all lumped together, you can move throughout that budget
very fluently. We need them to be separated. Thompson: Yeah, these are all levels of the
departments. I can go back to the exhibit, split every single line item, and show 50% of where it
was. So, I can provide an exhibit and that'll tie you into that same number. Williams: That's the
budget we should be approving for March 29th. So, it appears we may need to have a special
meeting. Nikelic: I had questions, so we went through the road projects last night. And all



$500K of the ARPA money was as it stands, as it was presented to go towards road projects.
Thompson: Yes. Nikelic: I'm wondering, is there a way perhaps, is there money in other ways,
from cuts or otherwise. Where we could use the ARPA money for other things. Such as
renovating the parks, the kids parks in our neighborhoods, as opposed to doing the roads?
Because right now, the full $500,000, because we have Tiff dollars that we could be using. Is
there a way we could do an analysis of if that $200,000 was used for other types of things. Such
as rehabilitating our neighborhood parks? We could find the money to use something else.
Because the $200,000 that could go towards if we had a grant. There is a grant for Parks and
Recreation, that we may need upfront moneys for. But if we put them all into the road projects,
that would push everything back before everything else until next year. So, I would just like an
analysis to see if there's a way for other moneys, the Tiff dollars or something else. Because the
ARPA money is there now available to be used. But if we put it all into these road projects, you
know, the road project that it's a lotted for is Oak Leaf. So, there's, you know, unlike Fair Oaks,
Fair Oaks, there's residential streets coming off of Fair Qaks. But Oak Leaf, if I'm not mistaken,
there are no residential streets coming off of Oak Leaf. So, there's mainly just dump trucks,
right? So, we're going to spend. Gottschalk: There's Interstate McBee there. Davis: Right and
you have Alexander, [ mean that's residential. Nikolic: Right, Alexander, but they're not coming
down this way. They're kind of going that way. Warren: We can look in to it. Nikelic: Right, so
it's a thought because right now, I mean, I don't know how often are we going to get that money.
We're not getting that money. This is probably the last opportunity to get that type of upfront
money. So, if we can just explore how we could, you know, Oak Leaf, maybe specifically.
Because that's what the other $250,000 is alotted for. Specifically, how we could use the ARPA
~ funds for something else. Use funds for other types of grants. Thompson: Yeah, I'm pretty sure
the five that we did get was earmarked from the Engineers. For specific use on the road projects,
but I can explore it like you said. [ know you want to spend more on the park. I think the
$500,000 was definitely earmarked for these road projects. Nikolie: Earmarked by who?
Thompson: In discussion that we received them from the County through our Engineer. Because
he has earmarks those projects. Nikolie: Right, I know he has them included as part of the
funding to do the project. But that doesn't mean it has to be used for that, right? That's why I'm
saying can we look for alternative sources. So, we don't just say we're not going to do the road.
Maybe there are other funding sources that we could look at. And then still be able to rehab our
parks. Because, you know, the parks for our kids haven't been touched since [ was a kid.
Warren: Excuse me, but they have been. Nikolic: The park next to my house hasn't been.
Warren: You weren't in Oakwood at the time, probably. But they have been worked on and
anybody that's been on council could tell you that. Now, we do admit that there is some need for
the parks. However, I wouldn't support on compromising a road project. That we already have
identified us for to move on forward. I think that what we should do, or I suggest that we think
about doing. Is find an alternative source for the children parks and things like that. First of all,
why don't we apply for the grant. And see if we get awarded the grant. And then we could talk
about reimbursement, but without having to grant. This is simply, a useless conversation.
Nikolic: Well, it's not useless because there is a grant. Warren: As [ said, if we don't have it, if
we haven't applied for or didn't have it. Nikolic: The point is it's a reimbursement grant. So,
reimbursement means you have to spend the money up front, right? Warren: You have to be
awarded it first too. Nikolic: Right, but the point is you have to have the funds available. So,
that's why it's a discussion about how we can explore options. It's not about saying we're not
doing that or we're not doing this. But what we're doing is saying, are there other funds that we



could use for that project, or are there other grants? So, I'm putting out the idea... Warren: Or
for the parks, are there other funds that we use for the park? Nikolic: Absolutely, so it's just an
idea to start thinking about. So, it's not 100% roads for the next three years. Williams: I only see
$250,000 for ARPA here, is there $250,000 somewhere else? Nikolic: They used the other one
for Fair Qaks, the other $250K. Williams: It's just not in the packet we received yesterday, right?
Nikolic: They already did. Thompson: He got it in there. Williams: Thank you. Davis: | have a
question, can you just to reiterate, I don't know if you've made it clear enough. The recreation
budget, I would like to know all the people that obtain these department wages. Who they are,
how much each one cost, if it was more than one person? And also, for the fitness instructors,
each one listed, the days or the months or whatever, hours, however you want to put it, please.
Thompson: Yeah okay, I'll get the details. Davis: Okay, thank you. Williams: Do you know the
department wages, who are those attributed to? Because first we heard it was just Carlean. Then
we heard it was summer camp. Then there's a different line item for summer camp. Thompson:
Well, when we go through the budget process, the Mayor likes to have his summer camp
holistically on one line. But I have to remind him that the people getting paid salaries. [ got a
chart of accounts, that I have to solely charge those too. So, I'll put the appropriations in correct
line. Now for recreation and the salaries, it should pretty much only be Carlean. And we're taking
steps to correct her from being paid as a contractual and being on payroll like we discussed. We
are going to combined it into one line item. She should be the one in there, along with the
summer camp people for the summer. Williams: So, to clarify, the question was, in 2023 total
expenses, these department wages. This $82,000, is solely, right now as you have it itemized,
Carlean’s? Thomspon: No, that $82,000 is Carlean and the summer camp counselors. Williams:
So, down here where it says summer camp for $90,000. No wages are included there?
Thompson: No. Williams: Got it, thank you. Thompson: Yeah, you're welcome. Davis: Why
don't we have the approved budget with the total expenses. To make sure that we were in budget
for 237 Because I don't remember... Thompson: I'll go back and verify it. What he's trying to
do, he’s trying to show what you're talking about now. Like show the budget we need approved.
And he's showing the year end for 2023. Maybe there’s another typo there, we'll go back in and
correct it. Williams: So, you're saying this line item for 2023. This column should say 2023
approved budget? Davis: Yes. Thompson: She’s just trying to make the comparison of what
was approved in 2023 that was spent. Williams: We only approved $73,000, but $82,000 was
spent. Davis: For wages... Thompson: I need to go back and look at it and see. I'l] get that
information together. Nikolic: Any follow up? Williams: I have a follow up at the finance
meeting yesterday. We had extensive0 discussion about the payroll register. So, that we can
make decisions about increases. And you said we would have it today. Thompson: Yeah, that's
pretty much in crouched in trying to get the budget together. So, if you give me another day, [
can get that for you. But this is kind of a crunch for the timeline to get here for the meeting.
Williams: So just to clarify because we've been waiting some time. Thompson: Yes. Williams:
What you're going to do is give us a system report. From VIP, the payroll registrar, for all of
2023. So, we can see their yearend salaries. Thompson: Yes, you’ll get a full summary by
department by employee name. Nikolic: T had a question. So, you were mentioning that you
were going to add the total cost of fitness instructors to Carlean’s salary. Is that what you said?
Thompson: No, it’s only a portion, she was doing some classes on her own. She was being paid
contractually, but we also had a part-time salary. So, to rectify that, we're just going to make it
one salary for her to do. Nikelie: So, is her job description now going to include fitness?
Thompson: She's going to be Recreation Director and that will be part of the job duties. So that's



my assumption. Nikolic: And whoever comes next will be required to do fitness classes? What
would happen if we wanted to hire more? Because right now there are no evening fitness classes
offered. So, if we wanted to hire more fitness instructors. What's going to be the line item for
fitness instructors who are not Carlean? Thompson: We'll make it distinct, if it's a contractual
person that's going to be on a 1099. For their work as an instructor, we'll make that distinct. And
also, you know what the salary is going to be for that Rec Director. You know, it continues to be
defined between me, the Mayor, and Carlean and what that will consist of. Williams: Now
remember, we just had a five-hour session about this yesterday. That the budget and salaries, and
the setting of those are the authority of Council only. That is not a function of you, the Mayor
and Carlean, or any director. Thompson: It’s just a discussion. Warren: You can present it.
Williams: It's a presentation, it’s a recommendation, but we set the amount. Thompson: Yeah,
we understand. Williams: Okay, because we've been putting the cart before the horse. So, then
we get into these back and forth about who should have gotten increase, people expected.
Thompson: Right. Williams: So, [ want to make sure we're clear that it's a recommendation you
can discuss. Thompson: Right. Williams: But we make that decision. Thompson: Very clear.
Williams: Okay. Nikolic: Just so I'm clear on the line items for the budget. Would there be a
separate line item for fitness instructors after you take this? Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: What will
that be? Thompson: It’s going to be fitness instructors. Nikolic; The amount? Thompson: The
amount, I'll have to discuss that with Carlean, the director. Because she's in her discovery mode
of finding new instructors. Nikolic: Okay, but you're saying $15,000 will be added to the
$55,000, and it will become a part of her job description? Thempson: Yeah, we're looking for
her to be in that range that we have on that first salary. Right now in the fifty to fifty five range.
Nikolic: So, what we will request is that you submit a new job description once you're adding
the salary pay ordinance. Thompson: Okay. Nikolic: And how you're going to break that up.
Because right now, if she has part time duties and, you know the contractual work is separate.
You're combining them now and saying it's one thing. We need to be clear on where those lines
are being drawn. Because her job is a part time recreation director, does not include fitness
instruction, right? Thompson: Yeah, because she's currently separate. So, we're looking to
rectify that. We’ll have full details on what the new job description will be. Warren: I'm a little
bit confused. I thought we were accumulating the job responsibilities/duties that she's
performing. And we're going to accumulate all of those, including the fitness instruction and all
of that. And I thought that that was the whole purpose of the $55,000 salary. So, we wouldn’t be
getting a third party to do fitness instruction. I thought that’s what she would be doing.
Thompson: She still said there was different categories. Like Zumba and things that she wasn't
teaching. She's going to have instructors there. But you're right about the $55,000, in terms of
combining that role for her. And we're going to spell that out completely in the job description.
Warren: Okay. Gottschalk: As he was saying, let’s differentiate that so there's no confusion.
So, any other fitness instructors that's not Carlean. Thompson: Right. Gettschalk: Well, that's
what Mr. Warren was asking. Williams: No, what he was clarifying was. When we increased her
pay originally. The increase was to do just what you're talking about now. Thompson: Yes.
Williams: So, that she would be doing with fitness instruction, being recreation director. And
that was the reason for the increase. So now to say, or we just found out that she's been receiving
an additional amount for fitness instruction. On top of what we thought was already in that
salary. You see where we're going? So, we've already had that discussion and that was supposed
to be the premise for that increase. Thompson: We'll go back and we'll put everything to make it
really clear. If it 15 fitness instructors, besides Carlean. We’ll list their names and what their rates



may be. So, it'll be clear in detail when we get the information? Warren: Also, let us know what
dates that instruction is to be had. Like every Tuesday and Thursday evening or whatever that
case may be. Because I want to see what the difference in what these people are doing and what
she's doing. Thompson: Okay. Nikolie: Any further comments or discussion for our Finance
Chair? Hardin: Yesterday, [ can't remember, you were just informing us of the CARES money.
Yeah. That it was used, that we made the change, and so now it’s correct? Thompson: It’s not
corrected, but what the state asked me to do. Because some communities have had the same
situation. They're calling it, expense block. They want to take the expenses that the expenses that
they identified. Saying, okay, you could use that for CARES. But the (inaudible) is doing this. If
you give us an expense flop, showing us that the expenses were used for your safety forces. To
respond to things during that CARES Act. When the country was dealing with the COVID. Then
there is no harm, no foul, that's the language to use. So, if you pass legislation saying, we're
going to flop these expenses. And responding, I did submit the template to the Law Director,
who came back with a draft. And that's the procedure that they want to have done. Hardin: Did
you give us that? Climer: I believe the draft is done. Thompson: Yeah, the drafi is done.
Climer: Did I send it to you? Thompson: I did get it for sure. So, we can share with the Clerk.
We’ll forward it to the Clerk it’s in draft form for review. We can work through that in a work
session if you like. Nikolic: Any final thoughts or comments? Williams: I have additional
questions. Law Director and Finance director, did you all ever find the ordinance that, authorizes
sick time back? Climer: I believe it's in the package that I sent around by e-mail on March 6th.
Williams: Did anyone see it? Climer: [ have a copy tonight. Williams: Yes, that would be
helpful, thank you. Nikelic: Any further questions? May we hear from our Service Director? Is
Mr. Haba here? No, may we hear from our Fire Chief?

Asst. Fire Chief, Diroceo| Dirocco: Thank you, [ have no report from fire, I'm here for questions.
Any questions or comments? Thank you, hearing none, may we hear from our Police Chief,
please.

Police Chief, Garratt| Garratt: Garratt: Thank you, Madam President, I just want to go over a
couple things. First, I want to thank the Fire Department for helping us out. Last week, we’ve
had a couple of difficult calls. One of whom was a three-month-old baby that passed. So, we're
conducting an investigation on that. Along with a fatal accident we had on Saturday morning. So,
we work in conjunction with the Fire Department on a regular basis, obviously. But some of
those things are tough to go through with, officers. On a good note, you know, [ would apply for
grants on a routine basis. We did receive from our in October, we received a grant of $12,021.77,
for body cams. Our body camera’s life is coming to an end. That's our second batch of them.
We’ve been using body cameras in attendance for at least 12, 13 years now. And the life for
these cameras, again, the technology goes quick. So, we received a grant for $12,000 and some
change in October. And then we also were awarded a grant March 12", 2024, for $10,673
towards bulletproof vest, which is significant. It helps us out because, the vest themselves is
around $1,200 apiece. However, we stagger them, so there’s a five year lifespan. So, not
everybody is up in five years, it’s staggered throughout the department. So, the State of Ohio
looks at that and funds us accordingly, which is great for us. And then as of yesterday, we
applied for another grants from the Ohio Justice Services. And we received a full grant of
$16,994.55, which was for ten more body cameras and docking stations. So, that's what [ was
going to budget for next year. But it's a great [ don’t have to do that. So, that was all good news.



The other thing, I have a question from a Councilmember about the Solon jail contract. I put a
copy for each one of you guys, so we are on the same page. The question was, in the jail
contract, there was a $6,000 possible credit. That was put into place when we were starting with
Solon Jail. Because we had historical data of where we thought we we're going to be. Round
abouts, how many prisoners we're going to have, and how many days, and everything else. So,
they put it in there a threshold of 75. If you have 75 or less, you get $6000 credit. If you have
400 or more, you pay an extra $6,000. So, the numbers are right there for 2022, we had 85
inmates, 2023, we had 99 inmates. Along with video arraignments and stuff like that. 2024 we're
on track to exceed that again with 23 inmates as of February. So, that's why that was not in this
contract. We've established that we'll never have less than 75 and we're on the increase
obviously. And mind you, we try not to do a lot of inmates over to the jails. Because the courts
one don't want that. And two, we're trying to get better ways for people to blend back in for
traffic violations. We don't want jail people for that kind of stuff. So, we work a lot with Bedford
Court. We have a lot of chances to help people get back on their feet. So, that has come down
from what it used to be. But we're still going to be over 75. So, hopefully that answers the
question about the $6,000 credit. Nikolic: It does, but the way I look at it, it's no harm, no foul to
keep it in. Because there may be a year, we just went past the pandemic. Where, you know, we're
on lockdown for six months out of the year. And we would, you know, still, in the event of. You
know, I wouldn't see the need to necessarily remove it. Because there's no harm in keeping it in,
because it is capped at 75. So, for me, I would say, you know, you never know what the future
holds. To just leave it in, in the event, what's your thoughts on that? Garratt: It wasn't our
decision, that's how the contract came over from Solon. [t was established that's the price they
put on there. They did a three-year contract, and it's a double-edged sword with the three year
contract. One if we do a yearly contract, and say we put that clause back in every year. I can
guarantee it's going to go up. If we lock them in for three years, we're going to pay that rate for
three years and easy to budget. Overall, the contract is a $4,000 increase. Nikolie: No, it's good
to lock them in. But I'm saying why do we need to take the clause out. They wanted it out?
Garratt: Yeah, they sent it over with 1t out. Nikelic: Okay. Garratt: It’s what they proposed for
us. Nikolic: And we can't counter? Garratt: | mean, [ guess we could try. Nikolic: I mean, what
does Council think? I mean, it’s no harm, no foul but... Garratt: In two months we’re already at
23. We already know we're going to be way over. Warren: [ don't think it's necessary. Nikolic:
Any other thoughts? Davis: 1 don’t think it’s necessary either. Nikolic: Anyone else? Any
opinions? Williams: I don’t have an opinion one way or the other. If it is a great working
relationship. And you could just ask and see how they respond. I donr't know what the harm will
be in just asking. But, I don’t have an opinion one way or the other. Nikolic: Do you feel it
would cause tension to leave it in? Garratt: I don't think it would cause tension to ask. Nikolic:
Right. Garratt: I can do that if it pleases the Council. Nikolic: Right, that's why I started by
saying no harm, no foul. Because, you know, it's just something that will protect us, right? In the
event, [ mean, of course, locking them in for the three years is a good thing. But just leaving that
in it, it doesn't harm them if they can see this. But in the off chance, you know... Garratt: [ can
ask them if they would. Nikolie: Right, [ mean, it's just a thought. Let us know what they say.
Hardin: No chance in the next three years. Nikolic: Right, but the point is, why take it out. But
that's just me, I'm a litigator. So for me, [ always look at the contract is, you know, you never
know. Warren: You don’t need to be a litigator to read the contract. We understand what we're
reading also. Nikolic: Well, I'm talking about being overly cautious, not reading. Warren:
We’re all overly conscious... Nikolic: Cautious. Warren: Cautious and conscious when it comes



to the residents money. But the thing is, just like my position. s that, if they elected to take it
out, and if in three years we don't see (inaudible). Based on the fact that we're only talking three
years, what are we losing? Davis: So, this one is going to be dead, did we just started a new one?
Garratt: This is the issue; our contract has expired. And my only concern is, if I go back and
ask. It is expired, T think we have a good working relationship. We pay them on time. So, [ don't
think it'd be an issue if [ did it off the record kind of thing. Like hey, can you throw it back in
there? If it's a big deal, leave it out. | can ask that question. I can just do due diligence on it.
Davis: So, the one that we have now expires at the end of March? Garratt: It’s expired now.
Davis: Okay. Garratt: So, that's the only issue, jails are funny. Because they're expensive, and
departments don't like to have them. Bedford is just trying to reincarnate theirs. And they haven't
taken anyone from outside yet. But they're trying to because, you know, it's tough. Anybody and
everybody are trying to go somewhere. Or trying to find somewhere to jail inmates, it's very
difficult. A lot of overs, a mess when it comes to that. So, they'll be somebody, If we don't jump
on this, I guarantee there'll be somebody else that snatches it up, the spaces that we have
contractually gotten. That was a thing, they did us a favor in the beginning. Because the next
place is North Royalton. And for me to run to a prison to North Royalton with a guy...
Sometimes [ only have two, maybe three people on duty at the same time. Nikolic: No, right, we
don't dispute the need and the relationship. Garratt: I'll throw it out there. Nikolic: Okay,
Garratt: I'll do that, because [’d really like to get a lock down. Maybe we can act on it next
time. But between now and then I will find out. Matlock: Do we need to act on this today? You
just said that it has already expired. Garratt: It is expired. Matlock: And you're waiting to see,
or hoping that the space is still going to be available for us, correct? Garratt: As of right now
they know. I explained it’s in your hands and you're evaluating for approval. Matlock: Okay, do
we have to Ordinance for that? Nikelic: And they were paid, Othere's a check that they were paid
last month. So, the relationship is still working even though it's expired. Garratt: It is, the only
reason... Nikolic: They've been paid, so it is still going on even though the contract is expired.
Garratt: And the only reason I say that I'll go back and ask them. Is because we have a very
good relationship, because of the administrators that are there now. I wouldn't probably
recommend that if we didn't. Davis: so, do we need to have a special meeting? [ mean, because
once he finds out. We need to ASAP work on it because it might be changed. Nikolic: He said
we could wait until the next one. Williams: We have a special meeting planned to approve the
budget this week. If necessary, can you get with them. Garratt: [ can ask tomorrow. Williams:
Okay, because it could be added to our special meeting. Garratt: And it gave me a time to feel
him out, like if there’s red flags like we got to get this done right now or at the next meeting.
Hardin: Chief, one of my constituents in the audience received a letter. And they addressed
themselves, as | understand it, as part of the FOP. Mrs. Butler, did you bring the letter with you?
Butler: 1 did not, I'm so sorry. Hardin: Could you give the Chief, do you mind? Just because it
seemed like a fraud, it would be quick. Could you just tell him what your concerns are? Or, do
you remember, I can, if not. Garratt: Mrs. Butler, if you go back and call me tomorrow. [ will
be happy to assess it for you. Butler: I will definitely call you. Hardin: Thank you, Mrs. Butler.
Butler: I just know that we seniors are targets. So, diligent about monitoring things like that.
Garratt: And as | said before, if you guys ever had any questions. [ rather get a fraud call that
doesn't happen, call us any time. Nikolic: Any other questions for our Police Chief? Hearing
none, may we hear from our Building Director,



Building Chief, Marinucei| Marinucei: Thank you, Madam President, just a quick note on that
Macedonia property. It is in the hands of the legal department now. Basically, what we did is, we
complied...I’ve been working hand in hand with Ross. We gave them due process issues; we
went through all that stuff. Gave them time to meet with lawyers and all that, time has expired.
This past week, Ross was in the department to compile. I gave him all my work products
associated with this. Whatever it's going to go forward with that. Then I'm here for questions.
Hardin: Sommerville property, where are you so far as to the legal aspect of it? Marinueci: The
one | sent you the email on? Hardin: Oh no, the property on Sommerville. It looks like it is
abandon. Marinucci: That’s in the hands of legal that service and process. Whatever they're
going to do, they're going to do. I can't do anything anymore with the property. They are very
much aware of it. And, what's going on is, we have the Police Department, actively involved. We
went through all that aspect of it. We were not able to obtain service of process. And you got to
get service of process. So, there's a whole procedure of what they're doing. That's all in their
hands. Hardin: So, they haven't even been summoned yet or whatever? Marinucci: They have
not, the court documents have not been prepared. Hardin: So, what do you do? Marinucci: You
have to get service of process on the defendant. Hardin: I'm at West Bombay, and 1 never
answer the door. So, what do you do? Marinucei: Jim, can you help me? Climer: There’s
certain situations on which you can obtain service of process by publication. If you are unable to
find them. Hardin: Jim, would you get involved? And I'm going to tell you why. And T did
speak with your department, and it's not happening here. But I'm aware of very serious situation
where we have squatters. Not in Oakwood yet, but, we're not even accustomed to having houses
empty this long. But, I'd ask for special attention to a couple of places. But those are the kind of
things that this leads to. It's deteriorating and once they are in... You talk about money? [ know
someone had to spend twelve grand to get squatters out. So, that that that alerted me to the
possibility. Marinueci: [ can present to you that, because through communication. Speaking to
the neighbors, because this things started to hear a while ago. The permit process is long over
with. They came in, the original owners, and [ think they are in Cleveland Heights or something.
Garratt: University Circle. Marinueci: University Circle, they came here and got a permit. And
he had real issues, ancillary issues that come with the real ones. The real one to me is that they
started the process, but they never completed it. And then neighbor told us, speaking, they ran
out of money. And there's nobody on the other side. And I don't know, [ hope... I've represented
this a long time in the past. [ hope the contractor was diligent enough to rubberized it before he
left. Hardin: Well, all the wishing and hoping is not helping because it looks terrible. So, Mr.
Law Director... Climer: Yeah, Dan does Ross have the file one it? Marinucei: Ross has been
told about it. So, I'll call him in the morning. Mayor, one thing you asked about the awning at the
gas station. The lawyers were called that represented the gas station. So, we're going to get back
to you on a date. Gottschalk: Okay, thank you. Hardin: Could you give me a call after. Mr.
Law Director in a day or two, because it's bad. Warren: If he can't serve, and the Law Director
is saying that there's another way to do it. Why don't we just move forward with doing it in lieu
of service? Climer: Let me find out what the situation is and we’ll get it on track. Warren: But
once you do, you know that the whole intent for the Council person is to get this thing resolved
by service. However, it needs to be done. Climer: Right. Warren: Okay. Hardin: Thank you,
it’s been two years. Marinucci: They don't have the money. Hardin: Well, we're not going to
live with that house deteriorating like that. So, they lose it, put a lien on it, do something with it.
Because that is ridiculous the way that house looks. Davis: We did not get an updated thing
about going around our city. Marinucei: You'll get it at the end of the month. T sent one not that



long ago, you’ll get another one. Davis: The one you sent me was from January, and it was just
two lines. And the ones from September that we asked about two meetings ago. We asked you
about the ones that were listed as cited. city, but they had no going back and checking them
whether they were compliant now or not. Marinucci: I went into the file and I closed them out
and sent it to you. So, you have all those line-items that’s closed out. If not, I'll resend it
tomorrow morning. And at the end of the month, because he's doing his rounds. We'll fill that out
and I'll send it to you. You'll get another one in a week. But as far as the ones that's being closed
out, I closed them out two weeks ago. Davis: So, they were compliant, is that why you closed
them out? or are you talking about they were just not listed? Marinucci: These are minor issues,
these are grass cuttings... Davis: No, you have a mailbox down, and house deteriorating. The
mailbox that was down, [ asked him specifically about it. He goes, okay I'll back this up, so we
closed it out. Warren: Did he give you a picture of it? Marinucei: No, [ didn't ask for a picture.
Warren: Well, let me just make one recommendation to get pictures of everything that they go
out there and see in the field. Marinucei: Yeah, he has a lot of pictures. Warren: All right, so he
should do it, and then give you a report. Saying that the mailbox is in, show the address, and then
give you a report. Marinucci: Those things are real minor. Davis: If a house is deteriorating...
Marinueci: The issue with deterioration, we have to keep on top of it. But most of that has been
complied with. Williams: Can you talk about the process and procedures for contracts Brian?
He’s mentioned Cirincione’s name a few times. And I know his contact ended in 2023, I know
we did appropriate with 2023 levels. But if he doesn’t have a contract. How were we paying? I'm
assuming he's not working for free. Thompson: Yeah, if I'm not mistaken Ross has a salary
portion, but in this legislation, he has a piece as well. I think at $112 an hour for his services in
that respect. Climer: For litigation. Thompson: Yeah. Williams: I thought that contract ended
12/31. Thompson: Well, the new one for the legislation, wouldn’t that be his renewal Jim?
Williams: It’s tabled, it's been tabled for several months. Climer: An Officer, once appointed,
remains in office until replaced. So, he's working under the old ordinance right now. Williams:
So, process and procedure was my original question. Once someone is out of contract, we just
continued to pay them? Thompson: [ mean, just the situation we're talking now. If we're going
off of the old contract, we would until something is removed. Williams: So, what would be the
purpose of a contract if when it ends, we can just continue to operate. Warren: Not to be
creating a problem, but it'll be the same concept of the Police Chief, and Solon without a
contract. Williams: Whatever the concept is, we talking about process and procedure. What we
spent a lot of time on yesterday is how are we making payments? Do we have actual
authorization from the Council. Or are we just making payments because we used to make
payments? Warren: Well, the Law Director is saying that the contract carries over until that
contract 1s replaced. And if there's a need for services, we can't be without the services of the
professionals that you hire. So, I guess that's where the concept of the contract being carried
over. So, that those people could provide the services that are needed by the Village. Just like
we're talking about fire protection and police protection. Williams: The position carries over, is
what you said, correct Law Director? Because the contract ended effect in 12/31... Climer: It
was not a contract. He was appointed pursuant to an ordinance to an office in the city. An office
holder continues in office until replaced or terminated. Williams: So, there is no contract?
Climer: He is appointed pursuant to an Ordinance. Nikolic: So, the Ordinance is the contract.
Climer: | mean the Ordinance appointing him, acts as the contract. Warren: Let me just try to
clarify it. He's under ordinance as a pay for employee for certain, services. And then those
services that exceed those things, like the litigation, like going to court and things of like that. It



is different, as it always has been with the Assistant Law Director. It's a different pay, so if we're
not in litigation, he's getting paid his regular salary until he’s replaced. Climer: Yes, he is paid a
salary. And then for the litigation, going to court, jury trials, motion to suppress hearings, he's
paid $112 an hour. Williams: So that is that's not the salary portion? Climer: Correct, that is not
an unusual arrangement. Williams: I’m not asking or implying that either. ’'m just asking a very
specific question. That is the part that is not the salary, that’s all I'm asking. Climer: That's
correct, and that is per ordinance, as is the salary. Nikolic: Any further questions? Scruggs: Yes,
it's kind of in line with, contract timeline. Is there any place where we are... since we're not on a
staff or, contracted time. Where everybody's contract renewal is on this date, or this season, at
this time. Is there any place where we're keeping record? Like a calendar of when contracts or
things are going to be coming up for renewal. Where we can kind of get a handle on this.
Because I've noticed we've kind of lost several timelines where, you know, we didn't know it was
coming up. Is there any place that we're keeping record of these things, the agreements that we're
getting into? Do you have that or it's just kind of... Thompson: I don’t think it's like in one
place. I mean, usually directors come to me, and they know that some of their services are
retiring. But I don't know, a straight answer we don't have one like in place showing all of them.
it usually comes out the directors. Warren: | think that possibly there are certain positions that
are renewed annually. A lot of those positions are supposed to be reviewed and renewed
annually. Such as the Law Director and all the other appointed positions. And then there's other
things like you're saying this just service contracts. That's a little different than the employment
or professional service contracts. But most of our professional service contracts are renewed
annually. Williams: So, as we start to get a handle on finances. Are we thinking that we should
have a spreadsheet with timelines? Seruggs: Absolutely. Thompson: So, we are not having
conversations like Solon’s contract. When we were already out of contract. Which we know was
delayed by other budgetary issues, or rather, unexpected reports. But that would be helpful.
Thompson: Okay. Williams: Would you like that with the monthly finance reports? Scruggs:
Yes. Nikolic: Any further questions for our building director? Hearing none, moving on to
agenda item number seven, Ward reports. This is the first week we're doing this. This is
something new. Each council person is going to do a short report on their ward. If they don't
have a report, they can say no report at this time. Let's try and keep for starters, our comments to
maybe like three minutes to see how it goes or, you know. If you don't have reports, say no
reports. But this is something. So, you have more detailed information from your direct ward.

Ward Report

Councilwoman Seruggs: No report at this time for Ward one.

Councilwoman Hardin: Since this was my idea, [ have to say. I have asked the Service Director
to re-issue the Waste Management flier to several residents. Because they're saying they never
received them. So, if there's anybody that said they didn't get them. They will be getting them.
Councilwoman Matlock: No report at this time.

Councilwoman Davis; [’'m next, ward four, we had talked with Mr. Garrett. Because we have a

resident Macedonia Road that's complaining about lots of speeding going on Macedonia Road.
And that affects many of us in ward four. And so, he's going to put up the speed trailer with the



speed things to flash for a while. And they're also going to be patrolling more. And then when it
gets a little bit warmer outside. We'll have that beautiful motorcycle Policeman. That Policeman
is going to be sitting on different parts of Macedonia Road. Okay, so you're now forewarned.

Councilperson Williams: I'll report on our NLC trip to Washington D.C., which was March
13th through the 16th. Most of council attended an after-school policy, type of webinar or
workshop. Where we learned about how to integrate apprenticeships into the community in
combination with the school district. And so that's something we talked about exploring as
having some type of apprenticeship program. We know some ties already exist. But just
expanding that and seeing what that would look like in the context of our community with the
school district. | have a few concerns that have been raised by residents. For the noise barrier
behind Free Avenue, as one. Residents are inquiring about their tree screening. That was
promised as a result of the Interstate McBee project and the Waste Management project. The tree
screening was supposed to happen behind their properties. So, when we raised a Tiff dollars
yesterday in the finance meeting. Just seeing what we've allocated for those trees to be actually
installed. And then, we have some concerns with Suwanee being repaired. And really not
repaired, it just needs to be totally replaced. So, those are the three major concerns for ward five.

Nikolic: Okay, thank you Council persons, moving on to agenda item number eight. This 1s
committee reports, this is also new. The committees are now back in business. They've been out
of business for many years. But now I'd just love for the Council person to tell the chair... Each
Councilperson is a chair of a committee. At this point they may or may not have a report. But ['d
ask each Councilperson to simply let everyone know which committee they're the chair of. And
if they have anything to report if not, this is a new addition to the agenda. And of course, the
committee meetings as well as the general meetings are public. So, if there's any committee that's
of interest. Watch the watch the notices, because those meetings will also be public for you to
join and participate in as well.

Committee Report

Fine Arts Committee
Councilwoman Scruggs: | am the chair for the Fine Arts Committee. No report at this time.

Health Care Committee
Councilwoman Hardin: I'm the chair of the Human Resource department, and at this time,
there are no reports.

Utilities

Councilwoman Matlock: I'm the chair for utility department. And right now, we're just trying to
look into different utility companies and see if we can get our community a lower rate with
utilities. Or at least that the residents know what utility company that they can use. That would
provide them with a lower rate. That would be on your electrical and your gas program.

Environmental Committee
Nikolic: [ am the chair of the environmental committee. If you know, next month is Earth day,
and Arbor day. So, it's Earth day, Arbor day all month. Today we had a presentation with our



committee for a climate action plan. We're going to start, looking towards what we can do in the
Village to be more green. Also, on the 27th, we're looking at having an electric vehicle display.
So, people can come and start educating themselves about electric vehicles. And maybe have
some other stakeholders come and educate about recycling. Also, we had Brian Segers, he's with
the OEC, the Ohio Environmental Commission. He's also going to work with the Village to help
boost up our recycling program. So, there's a lot of things in the works, We'll get you more
details about Earth Day and E.V. vehicles. I've also been speaking with, Chief about the
possibility to test and evaluate patrol cars, perhaps. They have a new Tesla model that allows for
transport. And, you know, there may be some grants or something to allow for testing and
evaluation. That would be a great way to save on fuel. So, these are some things that are coming
out of the environmental committee. And, you know, we typically will meet on the second
Tuesday of the of the month, right at 5:00pm., we'll try for that schedule.

Economic Development/Grants Committee
Warren: Economically grants Committee chair, and I don't have a report. But I'm always
working on and looking for grants.

Safety-Service Committee

Davis: I'm the chairman of the Safety and Service Commission. And I just want to reiterate that
we have the best Safety and Service Department in the world. But, if anybody has any problems
with safety or service, or something. Besides bothering them, you're more than welcome to
bother me.

Tax Incentive Review Council Committee &

Finance Committee

Williams: I am the Tax Incentive Review Council Committee chair. I have no report at this time,
We have not met yet. I am also the Finance Committee chair. We have a lot going on and a lot of
work to do. As you heard, we are going to approve a 50% budget for Oakwood Village through
June 30th. So, we can continue to have our services in the Village. What that essentially is, is
we're taking the budget for 2023. And we're taking 50% of our budget, and we are using that
budget again for 2024. Until we can go through further reports. To find out more information,
make sure our reports align with what we believe we know. And what is actually happening
within the Village day to day. As you know, the budget is Council's authority to approve. But we
do not have day to day operation. And so sometimes the information doesn't always get back to
us in the way that we need to approve a budget. So, we're making sure that we go through that
very thoroughly this year. We are under a special audit investigation from the state of Ohio. So,
it's very important that we begin to do things differently. To make sure that we are protecting the
taxpayer’s dollars. And that is our finance report,

Nikolic: Thank you, going on to agenda item number nine. The floor is now open for public
comment. Please step to the podium and state your name.

Open Floor Comments

Donese Harris, 26455 Morning Glory, Harris: Hello, good evening, my name is Donese Harris
and [ live on Moming Glory. And I would like to thank the Police Department because they
answered every time I called. And I could have called more. But because my father is a retired



Police Officer, my issue is that's probably not as major as it could have been. And I would like to
apologize for not reaching out to my ward person Mr. Scruggs. But ongoing problem, I wasn't
going to address it here. Well, actually, I reached out to someone in my neighborhood, and they
suggested I address it here in with our HOA. I live across the street from probably the liveliest
house in the Meadows. And there are times when I literally cannot, if I'm not home. I have
trouble getting into my driveway. If I'm at home I can't get out because there's a lot going on
across the street. And also, probably last year, my neighbor now has two pit bulls. I'm off work
on sick leave this year. So, I can tell you that she just opens the door and lets the dogs run out. [
called the Police because she now has an invisible fence. But the invisible fence... because my
friend has a dog. And my friend, I'm like well the dogs are running up and down the street. And
my friend told me that the thing only works if the dog is wearing the color is the collar. Which is
why my ring cam is going off at 1:40 in the morning. So, when my ring cam goes off the 1:40
the morning and 1 pull up the camera. I can see, on my ring cam, right across the street. The front
door open and the dog running around. So okay, this is this is about to sound crazy. But my
driveway is only four car lengths long. I drive to my mailbox because I'm scared to walk from
my front door to my mailbox. Because I'm scared of her pit bulls. I'm scared to go out and work
in my yard. I mean, this is... Gottschalk: Chief, what can be done about this? Harris: I called
the police several times. Because like [ said, I'm at home during the day now. I've been at home
all year. I can say she just opens the door, and the dogs are just running around. They're just
running, and I'm looking, 1 don't even call the Police. Because I'm in the house now because it's
cold outside. Weli, they're older senior citizens that are walking. And I noticed there was one of
my neighbors and I'm sorry, I don't know them. The neighbor apologized, she said I'm walking
in your grass because I don't know if those dogs are out. So, those senior citizens that arc
walking every day. They know that the dogs are over there. So, that's why she said I'm walking
in your grass every day because I don’t know if those dogs are out there. I'm scared to go out and
work in my own yard. And I'm like, this is ridiculous. Gottschalk: What's your plan of action?
Harris: I know what mines is going to be. Garratt: You said you have the ring doorbell?
Harris: mmhmm. You have footage of them outside their property? Harris: Mmhmm, and with
the door wide open. They just leave the door open for them to run back in after they let them out.
Garratt: But do you have images of them off of their property on your property? Harris: When
the ring camera goes off, yes. Garratt: Can you save that ring camera footage? Harris: Yes.
Garratt: Then we can cite after that. Harris: Okay, because see, I only call the police during the
day. Like at 1:40am, I don’t call the Police. Garratt: [t's frustrating for you and us because by
the time we get up there. The dogs are back in the house. Harris: Yes, they are. Garratt: And
then we're like, yeah, well, now if you're saying...No one's going to allow us to prosecute them.
However, if we have evidence of it, such as the ring door. If you have a captured image and or
video. Turn it over to the officer, we’ll be happy to cite. Gottschalk: Chief there's other residents
that are making the same complaint. Garratt: Again, if they are outside the yard as they call us.
And we come there and the dog (inaudible)... Gottschalk: Forget getting the... I mean that
should be enough to be able to do something. Harris: This is ongoing, this just didn’t start in
January. Garratt: You have to prove that the dog was off the property. Gottschalk: There are
different, people that are all saying the same thing. Come on... Garratt: Mayor, this is my area,
1’1l take care of it, thank you. If you have an issue, and we have four people write statements to
us that the dog is outside. I'll go bring that to the prosecutor. Harris: And I would say this, I’ve
called the Police and you all have helped her go get the dogs. Garratt: Now understand that. ..
Harris: I don't know how many times I called, and you all had helped her go find the dog during



the day. Because I call the Police during the day. I don't know if she's (inaudible), I don't know
that. But I'm just saying it's like ridiculous that I can’t go in my own vard. Garratt: Absolutely,
what’s your address again? Harris: 26455 Morning glory, the first house. Warren: I'll ask the
Council Clerk if you can look. We have an ordinance for animals. We do have an ordinance for
the animals. So, if you can pull that ordinance out and provide it for the Police Chief. Oh, in
addition, you can give a copy to the rest of Council. We will review it because this has been an
1ssue over the years. We'll see what the ordinance says and if there is any room through the Law
Director to revise it, we will. But I almost believe that at one time, the state of Ohio had the pit
bull identified as a animal that... Garratt: Not anymore. Warren: You said not anymore?
Garratt: They had to pull that out. Warren: One time they did have a vicious dog... Garratt:
Not allowed any more. Harris: And there's something else I want to ask. Because I tried to look
but I didn't know exactly where to look. There's no, like, leash laws in Qakwood? Warren: Yes
we do, and that's why I'm saying we have an ordinance that I had identified for that purpose.
Garratt: They can run around their yard; they just can’t leave it. If they leave the yard and you
go walking it has to be on a leash. Nikolic: Thank you, I just want to remind everyone. You have
the right to speak uninterrupted for a minimum of five minutes. Okay, uninterrupted, to your
heart's content. So don't feel as if, you know, you have to stop or wrap it up. If, you know, after
five minutes, we may ask if we want to clarify a point or something. But you have five minutes
to speak without interruption to your heart's content about whatever you want.

Nanette Carter, 26449 Morning Glory, Carter: [ live next door to Donese daughter and those
dogs, they are a problem. Whenever my girls come over, they are afraid to get out of their car.
Because the dogs just bark all the time. And we have been dealing with this for so long. I've been
in my house for 18 years in the meadows of Oakwood. I think it's like going on what, 19 years?
So, we have been dealing with this for a long time. However, the same house, there is always
something. T had to call the Building Department several times this week. This is Tuesday, she
had a couch outside for two weeks. For two whole week like we in the ghetto. [ pay too much
money for my house, to be pulling up in the meadows. To see two couches for two weeks. I call
the Building Department. I called the homeowners association, that's what I did. But why can't
the Oakwood Building Department do something about this? I mean, why do [ have to pull up
my driveway and see this? I'm sorry, pull in the development and this the first thing [ see. Two
big couches, they like standing up for two weeks. Actually, they just got removed today. I called
the Building Department two times this morning. Please get this couch, I mean, can someone go
to her house and do something. [t's Easter weekend and let me back up. The couches weren’t
wrapped up, so she didn’t even wrapped it. I mean, it's been like this for two weeks, wet with
snow, it was ridiculous. Scruggs: I received the message today. The couches were removed
within an hour and a half of me receiving the message. Mr. Haba, Tommy Haba, [ spoke with
him. He went out, went to the house, knocked on the door. Because basically the only thing that
we could do at that moment. With the Waste Management, they expect us now to wrap our
couches before you pick them up. And they expect us to make the phone call to schedule a large
pickup. If you do not make the phone call to schedule large pickup, and you don’t wrap it. Waste
Management is going to leave it there. Outside of that, then you're supposed to get the citations.
So, Mr. Haba, who is not here, who is on his way on a vacation. Before he got on the plane, he
said, “I don’t want this to go down the rabbit hole”. Which speaks to the excellence of our
workers here in Oakwood Village. He said, “I want to make sure; I'm just going to go to her
house. And I'm going to knock on her door and I'm going to talk with her”, No one was there, he



said he saw the Waste Management truck driving down the street. He flagged them down, he and
the Waste Management person put it on a truck. They didn't even wait. Carter: Thank you.
Scruggs: So, that's Mr. Haba, but when we found out about it. We got on it pretty quickly.
Talked with our president also of the association. He mentioned to me that that was out for a
while. [ didn't drive that way, so I apologize [ didn’t see it. But we understand your concern, it
should not have happened. We try to follow those chains, and, you know, we'll make sure that
we're doing the best that we can as soon as we find out. Carter: Thank you. Seruggs: You're
welcome. Carter: One last thing the trash can. She leaves those out like six or seven days.
Nikolic: Thank you. Warren: I just wanted the two young ladies to know. That when you have a
situation, like the couches or something like that. You can call your Councilperson, but you
could call the Service Department. And then they will work out something. Because the large
items, like they say, they have to make a special trip for those. They don't put them on the
regular truck. But our Service Department, or the Service Director, our Assistant Service
Director will make sure that that's addressed. Carter: We are all aware of calling and making an
appointment. She just doesn’t following the rules. Everybody in the development, I mean, they
do, they wrap the furniture. But it's just that one house. Gottschalk: Dan get that address.
Marinucci: Can [ mention something, my assistant was telling me about this. Part of, the
process, we always say contact the homeowner association (inaudible). Scruggs: I am on the
homeowners association. Carter: I did reach out to them today. And they suggested that I come
here. But [ have been contacting the HOA people. Warren: I don’t think that the homeowners
association have the municipal responsibility... Gottschalk: [ want Dan to understand that
things should be gone the next day or... Hardin: Any time a citizen calls any part of the
administration regarding a problem. We should be communicating within the different
department. Okay, that's just plain common sense. Now, if those couches have been sitting out
there for two weeks. Now, Mayor [ want you to hear this because it's this time. For two weeks,
and the response was call homeowners association. Mayor, that is unacceptable, that is an
unacceptable response. Gottschalk: That's why we're taking action. Hardin: Well, how many
times do we have to go down this rabbit hole? Dan? Marinucci: Okay, hold on let me say
something. Hardin: [ need you to say something, go ahead. Marinucci: Because you’re going
down the path of... the phone call was made, and the response was contact the homeowners
association. And then we washed our hands of it and that's not true, We always say contact the
homeowners association because they have jurisdiction over different issues we have jurisdiction
over. Simultaneously with that, anytime there's a couch that's left out. We’ve always called the
Service Department. Well, we hear it from both sides, and when Aaron was at... I'm familiar with
this because this was just brought up a couple of days ago. And when Aaron was walking out
and running out to go and see it. He said I’m calling up Tommy, as he's walking out. So, we
work together with the different departments and definitely with the Police Department and the
Fire Department. Hardin: Are you telling me that when, Aaron or, Ryan or whoever. Ran out
the door, that was the first time your department was aware of those couches? Marinucci: [ can’t
answer that, but 1... Hardin: [ would like for you to get back to this Council and your boss...
Marinucci: All I can say is this, the phone call was made about couches. Because [ was doing
emails to Ross at the time, and he says [ have to go and check couches in the Meadows. So,
that’s when I knew... Hardin: Umm Mayor, I'm going to ask you to follow up. To find out
when the Building Department was notified and how long it took to resolve the problem. Yes,
you.



Patti Napier, 21675 North Lane, Napier: From ward five, Councilperson Ms. Candace, and
Mrs. Hardin, and this young lady front, which I'm glad to see. I live at 21675 North Lane and I'm
going to make this short. And, Mayor, it's been three years since that company opened behind
our property. And it's a situation that's gone from bad to worse and I'll tell you why. I just
realized that the road that they have back, like we're behind, we're in the back... our properties
are at the back door of this company. This is the back of the company and here's our property
line. And I just realized that that road is a construction road. Only for heavy and big equipment.
And for the last three years that's all that's been going on behind our houses. Those big trucks full
of dirt, stones, and they have trailers. And now they got some pipes back there. And the thing of
it is, is that. You've left us wide open. I mean, they're right on our property line. The thing, two
things, first thing you can ride down Ms. Candace, ride down Free Avenue at 1:00 in the
morning to North Lane. And then that company is lit up and the back of our houses, is right
there. They're on our decks, there on our swimming pools... Gottschalk: How many houses are
you from going west from Oak Leaf? Napier: I think maybe two, all the way down to right
Avenue. And it's like we have no security. There's nothing there for our safety. Qur lots are wide
open and then on top of it, you know. Oh, boy, my neighbors were supposed to be here. They'll
be here maybe next Council meeting. They're really upset, I mean, they're spitting bullets.
Because what this company has done. They're developing the land all the way back to the
railroad track. And I said have at it, [ don't care what you do. What I'm interested in, is what you
going to do for our property as homeowners. Because what they did to my neighbor, and [ was so
upset. [ have a little hill, and a creek, his goes straight out where he landscapes straight up. And
right on his property line they got a mound of rocks and dirt four stories high. It's higher than my
house, right on his property. And he had a confrontation with one of the construction workers
trying to wave him back. He said, I'm waving you back. This is my property, and we want to
know who's going to stand up for us. And go back there and say, wait a minute, these are
homeowners here, we're paying taxes. They landscaped the front of the company. And it's nice,
you know, they got the grass. You can park real nice and everything. Drink a cup of coffee for
you if you want. But behind the building where we are at. We need more than a fence; we need a
barrier. Gottschalk: I'll be calling the owner on Friday. Napier: Please do, cause this is like, oh
my Geod. And it's been bad, my neighbors have taken pictures. And they're going to be in here.
It's bad, and I think it seems like to me three years is long enough. And they think they can do
whatever they want to do. Because, w ell, who's going to say anything to them? They're not
thinking about these black people on North Lane. They arc doing whatever they want to do.
That's how it's coming down the pipe. Gottschalk: Just call the mayor, dee, don't let this go on
three years. We'll get on this thing, and I'll be speaking with the owner on Friday. Napier: Okay.
Gottschalk: All right, leave your number, though. Because there's another issue that concerns
me down where you're at. Napier: Oh, cause [ was like...I think it was last year I refinished my
deck. And in 48 hours, it was messed up already. That's how bad it is back there. And I think one
of the neighbors put his house up for sale and sold it. Because he felt the Village is just going to
run him out of here. Who's looking out for him? And it was a nice house, too. Williams: Thank
you for coming, while you're here, what would you all like to see happen? Napier: A barrier,
you know, like when you go on the freeways. That’s what it’s going to take, it's that bad. Right
now, when I drive home, they’re lit up in the back. And I understand why, for their security sake.
But they're not thinking about these are homeowners. They are right here on us. Williams; Well,
if you remember when that project passed, and we talked about it. There was something called
Tiff dollars that are supposed to be used for projects near that area, right. So, we talked about



that funding was supposed to be used for the screening that you all were promised. Napier:
Nothing has been used, it is more than a fence issue. It really is at this point.

Bernice Butler, Lynbrook Dr., Butler: | have two issues, number one, I like to address the dog
issue. I'm a walker, I walk at least three days up and down Forbes Road. And sometimes when
I'm walking, there are people out there walking with their dog. And this one man he had one dog
on a leash and his pit bull was not. So, I stopped at the corner, and I said sir, put that dog on a
leash. And he said, ma'am, this dog is friendly. And I said he’s friendly to you, he won’t be
friendly to me. And so, I just stopped there at the corner. And 1 said, I'm going to turn around if
you don’t put the dog on the leash. So could another notice go out to people in our neighborhood.
That that is a law, and you’re supposed to do that. The dogs may be friendly to them, but they're
not really to other people. So that's one, that's number one. That's the request I ask of you all
please, just to help us. We want to enjoy this neighborhood. I've been here since 1970, and I plan
to stay here until the day God has planned for me. And I plan to walk, and Spring is my greatest
season of the year. [ like being out in nature, and I'm going to continue to do that. And that's why
I love this area because it’s so beautiful in the Spring. Now, number two, behind our home, there
are homes on Richmond Road. And then they are homes on Lynbrook. Well, between the two
there's a ravine where garbage and everything else comes down in the ravine. We need help from
the city to clean that up in the spring. Because, you know, once in the fall, the trees and limbs fall
down and the leaves. Some of us try to keep it clean. But we can't get all of it because it's a lot.
And in order for us to get it, | even call someone to help me. And they the price they gave me
was too much. And so, I'm asking my city to do it at least once during the Spring. If you could
have people come, Mr. Haba, he did it one year. Come down and just clean it out for the Spring.
And then once in the Fall, is that possible? Hardin: Yes, it will be done. Butler: Thank you so
much, that's what we need. Nikolie: [ just want to respond. Last week, we were speaking to the
Service Department about creating... there's not currently a schedule for litter collection. But
what we were suggesting was, you know, when you go in a bathroom. And they have a list last
service years. So, and of course, ward Council would also contribute to this list. But T asked
Tommy if he could create a list of the streets and put a date of last serviced on there. So, when
you actually look at the list. If you're getting several complaints, maybe there needs to be some
more education, some more moderate monitoring. If, for example, one street is, you know, every
two weeks you're having to clean it up. The Service Department was very responsive to that and
I'm expecting to see that list. And with that, we'll absolutely add on that ravine. That can be
included and maybe make that a top priority. If he doesn't recall having serviced it in a month's
time, then maybe he can get out there and take care of it. For the dog leash, I'm thinking
sometimes they have the signs with the fine, if they're put up. Maybe we could talk to service
about getting a couple of those. You know, it may not be a deterrent, but you can always point to
a sign and say, you know, or take a picture. It just as a deterrent, just as a way to start. So those
are some ideas that we can run past service to see if we can get some motion to help you. Butler:
One last thing | want to ask you about. With the bill back bit of money. When I came in, I asked
you what you’re going to do with that. You said the plan for 2024 was to do Forbes Road., is that
on the list? Gottschalk: Absolutely, Forbes Road will be reconstructed this year. They're doing
the whole thing from Richmond all the way to the to the 271 bridge. Butler: Excellent, excellent,
that that would be wonderful, add to our community. Gottschalk: Absolutely, and Council just
approved this project for yesterday at the finance committee meeting. Butler: Excellent,
excellent, and [ invite every one of you to come out and walk. From 271 down to Richmond



Road and keep these joints moving, keep the fluids moving. Nikolic: One other thing, a resident
in ward two, actually, Ms. Shirley Stevens. She approached me, she wants to start an
organization called Oakwood Walks. So that's something that, [ will definitely pass your
information on to her. Because she wants to start a Village wide health wellness initiative. She
wants to call it Oakwood Walks. We were supposed to meet last week. 1 wanted to talk to you
and, of course, Council. But, yeah, Ms. Stevens, she wants to start this wellness program
walking. And, you know, she wants to get everyone together that wants to walk. Hardin: May I
respond? Nikelic: Absolutely. Hardin: We already have an Oakwood walk club. And Ms.
Butler... Butler: Yes. Hardin: You and I talked about Ms. Cotten starting it last year. Nobody
knows about it? All right, I'll make sure she... Nikolic: Put it together with Ms. Stevens so they
can combine. Hardin: Shirley is aware of it, so I'll can talk to Shirley, she's aware of it. Nikolie:
Okay, let's all work together. Hardin: And I just want to commend publicly, Mayor. We can
always depend on Tom Haba. Let's just put things in their proper perspective what happens here.
You can call Tommy any time of the day or night about any issue. And I don't know if it's
because he's a resident or because just the nature of the beast. But I have said it once and I'll say
it again. When Tom Haba retires, Mrs. Hardin will be walking hand in hand. Because he is
always amenable to help the residents of this community. And his attitude is just be beyond
reproach. And I think we give people their flowers while we can. Mayor, he is the best.
Gottschalk: Well, the last snow we just had a few days ago. 1 got a call from three residents in
ward two. There was one at 7:00am, one at 7:15am, and one at 7:20am. Thanking us for having
the Service Department already out there plowing the roads. Hardin; That’s Tom, that’s Tom
Haba. He works with his crew, he verifies their work, and he is responsive. And I will repeat
when you are working with taxpayers. They deserve a decent attitude even if you don't choose to
do the work. You can at least respond with respect, and he always does. Butler: Yes, and I
believe that his dedication comes from the fact that in 1970. When we first came up here to build
our homes. His father was the Mayor, and so he has that dedication to the area. Gottschalk:
Excuse the language but Ohio State Marching Band is dubbed the best damn band in the land.
Well, we have the best damn Police Department, Fire Department, and Service Department.
Sizemore: 100%, I got along with that.

Karen Howse, (Unknown Address), Howse: I'm actually here to ironically give some accolades
to some of the departments. Soon it will be Mother's Day and yesterday, [ had like, something hit
me, I got emotional. I lost my mom August 14th, 2018. And [ have to remind myself of
something that my mom used to say. She lived with me for 15 years even though she kept her
house in Warrensville. But she said, you know what Karen. Make sure you tell the Fire
Department how much [ appreciate them taking care of her. That message hit me this morning. I
said I was going to come to Council and mention that. How grateful I was for the care that they
gave to my mom. How compassionate they show my mom. And how understanding they were
with me. Trying to do the best I could to help my mother. So, it came to me this morning. I woke
up and [ said, I got to remember. I put it in my text to myself, so I make sure I say to the Police,
and to the Fire Department, [ so appreciate you guys. My mom lived with me in and that was my
best friend. And I miss her, and I just had to come up and say that. I can’t believe this... come up
and say how much I'm glad to be an Oakwood Village resident. And I just wanted to let them
know that I appreciate it, and my mom did too. Secondly, I concur, Haba is the dude. He is so
responsive; | think it's more of his demeanor. It is, and his approach. You ask him something and
he is there. You know, you ask a question, he's responsive and I appreciate that. But even back



when I was a worker. He was like that, you know, if I didn’t understand something. He’d said,
well, you know Ms. Howse, you know you got to look at this... he was so like patient. And that's
rare, but I appreciate him. But 1 appreciate all public safety. I just want to know how you can
deal with the little groundhogs. Garratt: I called the next day after three weeks...(inaudible)
Howse: Thank you. Warren: Just to let Karen know how smart groundhogs are. When I lived
on Forbes, they said that you throw some mothballs. This is what happened the groundhog kept
going under our deck. So, I went through a bag of my balls up under the deck. The next morning,
the bag was laying on the ground. The ground hog took the bag and threw it out from under the
deck. Just to show you how these ground hogs think. But I had the same thing, October 1%, 2019
with my mom; just to let you know. And it was something | was reading, and it was a resolution
of a person in the city. Their mother passed away at 97, and I said mines passed away at 95. And
[ wished [ had her at 95 today. Sizemore: You miss your mom. Warren: Yeah. Sizemore: We
always had a shoulder for you. Warren: I know. Nikolic: Floor still open for comments

Ben Sizemore, 2509 Garden Road, Sizemore: Is like you stopped you from being away. 1 just
want to say thank you for the Police Department. Because my grandson comes over and I get the
honor to watch him two days in a row. And the guys will come by and flash their lights at him.
He just gets...the kid turns into another human being. He thinks that's the greatest thing since
sliced bread. I've always told all my grandsons never be afraid of the Police Department or the
Fire Department. Because children today are very (inaudible) with staying away from the Police
Department. When they can approach a Police Officer and get help. You know, and these kids
today, they've got the attitude you owe me. Too much TV or whatever it is, but you guys are
always there. And you're willing to get out, talk to them. And I remember you when my girls
were little, and they first got the bike. He would come by the house, and he had, as matter of fact.
He had a group of Officers that, used to come out and help the kids out with problems with their
minds. You had that, what was that girl's name? You had her and, (inaudible) I use to call him...
The other guy who was with her, and they used to get up to talk to these kids. They really
worked hard with them; they need that. Kids need a place they can go and get away without
parents being there. But parents need to open up their eyes and look around a little bit.
Sometimes take that phone away, it doesn’t do them any good. The Fire Department I got to say,
when my daughter called you guys to get me out of that house. It took you a bit to figure but you
got me out there. You know, [ mean they did a carry, they had to do a carry because my house is
like a maze. But I'm here today, a couple pound lighter. But I thank you all very much. And 1
want to throw something at you. I've got trouble with a couple dogs, and [ straighten them out. I
walk on Garden and Hickory, and I walk all the way down to Broadway. Some odd times all the
way down to... I come out to Alexander and Pettibone. And I'll come up that way and walk
back. And I had trouble with the lady on my street when the boyfriend passed away. He had
gotten a new dog, and the dog came after me. And what [ did is, [ hit it in the head once. He
didn't take that one, so I did it again. And I thought she was going to call the Police on me. I said,
(inaudible) then when I was a child. I got pulled off a bicycle down south, and the dog had me
down on the ground balling. My brother got two dogs off of me. We went home, told my dad.
My dad reached up and got his (inaudible), took him a couple shells. And went and shot the
man’s dog. I mean that's the way they handled things back in them times, back early 50’s. I got a
couple of residents on my street. My girl here is doing a great job, but, they, had a house fire.
Well, garage fire, and he still got all the junk set out there. It's wide open, and it looks like
Sanford and Son. Davis: Worse than that. Sizemore: Yeah, you could say (inaudible). And you



go down a little bit further back towards me across from Ray's old house. There's a young man
there, and it's, he's taken over residence of his grandparent’s house. And he has a pickup truck
and some (inaudible) and about four yards of dirt. Wouldn’t you say? Right there by his garage.
Warren: Who are you talking about? Sizemore: Right there on Garden. Warren: Across from
my house? Oh, never mind. Sizemore: She knows where it is, it’s across the street from the blue
house; Ray's old house. Yeah, that house has been (inaudible). [ slipped around a couple time,
and they've done nothing. And Hickory, I'd like to see you do something with that strip, cause
it's, it's got... [ mean, you go downstairs you got to play Dodge ‘Em to get down that street. The
road is really washed out and, I'll let you know that. And there's a guy down there, he's got a
beautiful home. We had the same thing. He had like four couches or two couches and moving
boxes set out there in his yard and he never called or moved them. It all sits there and got rained
on. And these guys don't want to touch them. Because a lot of people don't understand they don't
want to take the bedbugs home. Or anything like that or any other kind of diseases. So, they
don’t do nothing with them. They go by and look at it to see if they ever wrapped them. There’s
a couch set out there for like three weeks. And he has got a brand-new home there but it’s on
Hickory. But he left his garbage cans out for a long time, too, you know. Now he's got a
wheelbarrow that’s been sitting there for a long time for a long time. T don't know if he has
(inaudible) or what. But sometimes they do (inaudible). Talking also about, Qakwood they fined
my neighbor Earl Hicks for his dog not being on a leash. And he was out front playing with the
dog. And the cop walked over and gave him a ticket right there. Said that dog has to be ona
leash. Warren: That's probably in compliance with the ordinance that was there. Sizemore:
Yeah, and I thank you all, that’s all, thank you very much. Warren: Thank you for coming.
Nikolic: Thank you Mr. Sizemore.

Jimmy Aleck, 24820 Garden Rd., Aleck: (inaudible) season is coming soon. People are cutting
the grass, their putting it on the street. When it rains, it's slippery, it could cause an accident. So
(inaudible) fire, maybe. And are there any grants for driveways coming up soon? Nikelie: This is
our grants committee chair. Warren: A Iot of the grants now are unfortunately all the income
eligibility. Because I've been referring residents to the grant programs that I know about. And
unfortunately, we make more money than what the programs allow for income eligibility. But
what [ could do is I'll give you a list of who to call. Aleck: Thank you because [ have a driveway
going (inaudible). Warren: Oh, okay. Aleck: And he started doing this last week, so... Nikolic:
Wait, what's the project? Aleck: I'm doing a driveway. Nikelic: Okay. Aleck: A while back you
guys had like a $3,000 grant you guys were giving out. Warren: See, this is what happened, is
that we’re trying to get that back. But what happened is that that was all part of the development
of the Kroger's. And Kroger's never did develop, we were going to take money from that. The
money that we get from the revenue from the payroll. And use that as the grant thing. We went
up ahead of time and did it before they really got started. Then they ended up not doing anything,
So, we're trying to get that back Village wide. Because Councilperson Hardin was really pushing
the other ones. About what about the rest of the Village. And so, we did put another ordinance in
place so that as soon as these businesses start producing again. And one of the core is the
whatever they do with that site on Macedonia. Aleck: All right, thank you very much.



Sizemore: Can I ask you another question? Warren: Yes, sir. Sizemore: There's a group of
hospitals coming out now and coming out of Chicago. And this is group, they're not affiliated
with UH or Cleveland Clinie. They're not a big pill operation. I’ve not yet to go talk to them or
anything about... cause the doctors at UH just about screwed me up. And it's hard to find good
medical doctors anymore that practices medicine instead of practicing pills. I don't know if y'all
tried to approach those people. And there's also natural health. A lot of people are getting into the
natural health. There’s this lady out there named Barbara O'Neil. And she was kicked out of her
country for giving people free information. On how to cure stuff without having to deal with
CVS or any other doc thing. But the other thing is called Central Health Care, 1 think it's called.
But I could find out again and get you that guy’s health care. I would like to see him open up a
little place out here. Where he could see more patients. Because you go to UH, they kick you
around to a specialist. The specialists kick you around to another specialist. By the time you get
done here. You've visited nine specialists. [ find out what my problem was. They gave me two
pills, one was a pill that gave me for my back. And I never had trouble with my back my entire
life; I was a furniture man. And they gave me a pill that was making me collapse. They ended up
putting me in the UH downtown. And the lady said, well we’ll put you a nursing home. I'm
laying down flat on my belly looking at bears. But I said what? I said can you get my phone to
me? They put some patches on my back, and it made it worse. I couldn't move nothing and
they're not paying attention what they're doing today. These medical doctors are not paying one
damn bit. Gottschalk: Why did you take a pill you’re your back wasn't bad. Sizemore: Well, [
didn't, it was for my heart. And they gave it to me because [ had massive heart attack, they said.
And I go, I mean I got a (inaudible). I drove myself to the hospital. T got out, walked in there and
told them, and I collapsed during that time. Then they just started (inaudible) like he was a one
paper operation. You know, these people are not taking care of their patients. These mothers,
dads, older people are not getting the health care they deserve. Gottschalk: There’s not enough
nurses, healthcare, legal, doctors anyway. That's one of the reasons for trying to promote in High
Schools, not even College. The opportunities available in health and medicine and the public
school system aren’t touching this. But you go to any hospital now, it's terrible. You could be
waiting three hours before you're even seen. Sizemore: My daughter studied to be a like semi
doctor, nurse practitioner. She studied to be that, but the thing is. Who helped save me was a girl
named Denise Woods. ['m telling you, that girl saved my life, man. And she used to work for the
Fire Department. She was at UH over there in the emergency room, her, and another girl. And
this guy was operating on me, while [ was laying there. I looked like I had gotten shot. I lost five
quarts, five and a half quarts of blood. He's opening up my leg trying to get a port in there. She
says, what the hell are you doing to that man? She said that guy walks, that guy does everything.
You are killing him... Butler: Why didn't you refuse? Get up and walk out. Sizemore: |
couldn’t. Warren: He had passed out already and lost all that blood. Sizemore: I was already
passed out and he was trying to work on me because of the blood. But what you lose five and a
half quarts that only leaves you two. And we're not getting the health care. And that's why
there's, like your mother. Like getting health care. My mom didn't get the damn health care, she
was 94. You know, my brother didn't get the health care, and he was only 74 or some 75. And
you go to talk to them. And I was trying to talk to him, and I told him, I said, listen. This guy can
communicate, | said, he’ll squeeze your hands. He can't speak, but he can still squeeze your hand
and tell you what’s going on. They didn't want to hear it. We are putting him in a nursing home.
And his wife blocked me from trying to do anything to get him out, to stop it. But what I'm
saying is, you got loved ones in the health care business or in the hospitals or anything like it.



Watch out because these people, young kids, they're working. One nurse, she's got 5 or 6
patients, and she's busting trying to take care of those patients. And these doctors are burned out.
I got a doctor, and he's just fried. Nikelic: So, what you’re suggesting is more of a community
health? Sizemore: What | am saying is we need to approach, this type of health care, see if we
can get into... We've got a shopping center down here it's half empty. But we also we've got
buildings where other doctors have practiced medicine. Get them in there, try to help them out,
try to help them get started. Try to get this thing figured out, to save some of these people's lives.
Nikolic: Okay. Sizemore: Because it's not right, they didn't deserve it. They fought their fight,
some of these people are World War Two veterans. And ['ve seen them having a tough time.
And, you know, I've always dealt with them and tried to help them out. It's sad that we let our
senior people be attacked and used as lab rats in the hospital business. I'd like to see us get one
here in Oakwood that can.... Gottschalk: We have some programs that you’re not familiar with
that is a very successful. And I'll introduce you to them later. Sizemore: There used to be a guy
down Bedford. Used to be a name of a Doctor Thomas O’Hagan, he was down there for a long
time. He was the head of Bedford Hospital. You couldn’t touch one of his patients. because he'd
go in and tell these other young doctors that’s coming in there to practice medicine. He'd say,
don't touch my patient. Keep your hands off of my patients. If you want to get your own patient,
you go get your own. They wanted to amputate my finger one time. He said, no, you can't do that
to that kid. But what I'm saying is, we need to wake up and listen to the bell, you know. Because
I lost my mom and there was no reason for it. I lost a brother and there was no reason. And if it
wasn’t for Denise Woods standing in there. She went and got another nurse, and they took me
out there, put me in an operating room. And they went in my stomach and found out that | had
busted vein in my gut. You got people like that care about you, you know, and that's hard to find.
But thank you all, god bless you all and don’t forget what this holiday is all about.

Butler: I just have one comment for all you seniors. Our baby boom generation is the largest
generation in the history of America. We're number one targets for criminals out there. And in
the hospitals they're just overwhelmed because there's too many of us. And they are not enough
trained to take care of us. So that's why we have to be more aware of our own health and how we
can keep ourselves healthy. You know, eat right, exercise, stay away from all that junk food out
there. It will take your life away, it’s hard but you got to do it.

Chastity White, 7419 Oak Hill Road, White: ['ve been here... I'm like the third, fourth
generation. 1've been on Free Avenue forever. But [ think I want to piggyback off two people.
Him with the driveway. So, I got my driveway done maybe about six years ago. And apparently
you have to go to the building to get the permit, and we did. But the people that did it obviously
cracked it, did a horrible job. And the problem is, when we've inspected it with the building...
when the building permit inspected it. They didn't do a good job, so it left us wide open. So, now
we just need to pay for it. So, when he mentioned that about the grants. I just wonder, it seems
like when you get the grants. It doesn't seem like it's really, wide open for people to see. It's like
it's sent to maybe just, I don't know, certain areas. But I've never seen where grants really come
into play, where you actually can apply for it, for the people of Oakwood. Nikelie: Right, I
believe, I think that ward four and maybe Mayor if you want to speak about it. But they had a
grant during Kroger time. Do you want to... Gottschalk: Yeah, but it wasn't promoted enough
yet because again, the Kroger thing collapsed. And then, again, we might not be able to do it this
year. But I would be very optimistic, cautiously optimistic. And certainly, by next year we'll



have this program in place. Every resident will know about it. White: That would be great, 1
mean we do want Oakwood to stay nice. And I like the fact that they come out and do the
plowing. But unfortunately, with the plowing, when they dig in your driveway, if it's cracked, it
gets worse. So, you know, and it's a fortune because we got cement. We don't have black, and
you know black blacktop is cheaper. But the cement is very expensive and that was a lot of
money spent. And so, with the healthy issue that she's talking about. I would like to see no more
fast foods in oakwood, [ really would. I think that Dunkin Donuts, that's fine, everybody loves
coffee. McDonald's it's a staple, but ideally it needs to go out. I think we need more farms. I
mean, we had Joy Farm at one point, but we ended up putting houses in it. Gottschalk: Fast
foods and the processed meat and that just leads to terrible. White: So, I mean Wendy's seems
like it’s really going downhill. I think if it gets tore down we need to keep it down. But ideally if
I'm not sitting in here. And everybody is wanting to put another fast-food place. Remember me,
please no more fast food. Gottschalk: Well, we do have a Starbucks, but that'll be it. Warren:
We have an ordinance that there is no more fast food that could come into Oakwood Village.
And, and that was passed years ago. Starbucks is because of it just all coffee. It is just carry out;
you know. But that's we have an ordinance that, we don't want any more fast-food restaurants.
And we deal with all of our zoning to make sure that we didn't, in addition to gas stations.
White: Oh. Warren: That's why Sam's Club has the gas station. White: Okay. Warren: They
were trying to put one right where two hotels were. A huge one, one of those (inaudible), and we
said no, we don't want this. But the zoning was already changed. The person that bought it, the
company that bought the three lot. I can’t remember the guy; he spent like about $1 million for
the lots and then found out he couldn't build. They actually took us to the Ohio Supreme Court,
and we won. So, we fight for our residents, and we do pre-planning. You know, we're not as big
as everybody else. But you know, we all part of it. And it makes it even better because it's more
personable. A disadvantage of being a village is that we're not direct entitlement. So, in other
words, when there's grants and things that come. The big cities get the grants directly. The
Villages have to go through the County or the state to try to get Grant. But this, situation that the
Mayor was talking about. Was a thing that we were just was doing specifically for Oakwood
residents. And it would have just came out of the money that we ordinarily be getting in our
general fund. It was being offered to the residents for improvements for their home. Matlock:
So, since you live on Oak Hill. If there is a grant that's going to be given for that, I let you know.
White: Perfect. Matlock: I'll let everyone know. Gottschalk: Was there another thought that
you had besides this? White: No, it was about her. Healthy idea. I just don't want to see any
more fast food. Because I know in Bedford it's nothing but chicken. I don’t deal with any meat,
s0, I'm like, no. Nikelic: Floor is still open any further comment for resident? Hearing none...

Floor closed

Legisiation
Climer: Proceeds to read legislation:

2023-55 AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF
Introduced 12-22-23 ROSS CIRINCIONE AND JOHN MONTELLO TO THE POSITION OF

By Mavor and ASSISTANT LAW DIRECTOR/PROSECUTOR WITH THE VILLAGE OF
Council as a whole OAKWOOD

15 read 12-22-23

2m read 1-9-24



Tabled 1-23-24

2024-03 AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
Introduced 1-23-24 INTO A CONTRACT WITH CHAGRIN VALLEY ENGINEERING LTD. AND
By Mayor and SETTING FOR THE COMPENSATION AND FUNCTIONS OF THE VILLAGE
Council as a whole ENGINEER AND HIS FIRM

1% read 2-13-24

2™ read 2-27-24
3" read 3-19-24
Tabled 3-8-24

Nikolic: Does Council want any further discussion for that contract? Or should we remove it
from table? Motion to remove from table to table? Williams: [t can stay tabled as far as I'm
concerned. Nikolie: Motion to remove from table? Hardin: No. Nikolic: Hearing none,
continue. Gottschalk: Ms. Hardin why are you not against this. Hardin: Because the budget is
only dealing with 20244, and it doesn't include the 5% that they're asking. So, the PERS amount
to $5,300, which in my mind, I don't have a problem with the PERS at this point. Now that [
realize, that’s how they... Gottschalk: Oh, [ see, so they're into which is the relationship with...
Hardin: The increase.

2024-07 A RESOLUTION OF CONDOLENCES TO THE FAMILY OF VIVIAN JEAN SMITH
Introduced 3-26-24

By Mayor and

Council as a whole

1% read 3-26-24

Motion to suspend rules for legislation 2024-07 made by Warren seconded by Davis
YES VOTE: Williams, Davis, Matlock, Hardin, Scruggs, Warren, Nikolic
MOTION PASSED

Motion to adopt legislation 2024-07 made by Hardin seconded by Matlock
YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams
MOTION PASSED

2024-08 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT A GRANT FROM THE
Introduced 3-26-24 CUYAHOGA COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISTRICT

By Mayor and

Council as a whole

1% read 3-26-24

Motion to suspend rules for legislation 2024-08 made by Hardin seconded by Davis
YES VOTE: Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams, Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs
MOTION PASSED



Motion to adopt legislation 2024-08 made by Hardin seconded by Davis
YES VOTE: Davis, Williams, Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, matlock
MOTION PASSED

2024-09 A RESOLUTION OF CONDOLENCES TO THE FAMILY OF CLARA BOW ESTELLE
Introduced 3-26-24 DAVIS
By Mayor and

Council as a whole
1% read 3-26-24

Motion to suspend rules for legislation 2024-09 made by Matlock seconded by Warren
YES VOTE: Matlock, Hardin, Scruggs, Warren, Nikolic, Williams, Davis
MOTION PASSED

Motion to adopt legislation 2024-09 made by Warren seconded by Matlock
YES VOTE: Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams, Nikolic
MOTION PASSED

2024-10 A RESOLUTION OF CONDOLENCES TO THE FAMILY OF BRENDA LAVERN
Introduced 3-26-24 {(WALKER) HUDSON

By Mayor and

Council as a whole

1% read 3-26-24

Motion to suspend rules for legislation 2024-10 made by Davis seconded by Matlock
YES VOTE: Davis, Williams, Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock
MOTION PASSED

Motion to adopt legislation 2024-10 made by Davis seconded by Warren
YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams
MOTION PASSED

Gottschalk: Madam chair. Nikolic: Yes. Gottschalk: Addressing this to our Clerk. I was called
just the other day, and I don't know why I wasn't aware of it. But Ms. Viola Fowler, the first
house off of Tryon on Qak Hill. She's been here with us, my gosh, at least about 88 to 90 years.
And she passed away, so we should put something... the house has been empty for a couple of
weeks. And so, let's get something together first and a resolution for her family. Because I think
some of our old timers will remember or know that name. Nikolic: Which ward is she?
Gottschalk: Ward three. Matlock: Yeah.

2024-11 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
Introduced 3-26-24 WITH THE CITY OF SOLON REGARDING THE CUSTODY, SUPERYISION,
By Mayor and CONFINEMENT AND BOARD OF PRISONERS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

Council as a whole
1% read 3-26-24

*Moved to second reading



Hardin: Question Chief, when did you say you would ask the question? Garratt: I will ask
tomorrow. How would you like me to notify? You want me to contact the Clerk? Nikolic: Yes,
that'd be great. Garratt: Okay, I'll have an answer. If the answer 1s yes, ['1] put it back on and
give a copy to anyone there. Warren: May we ask that if we're not going to act on it today. As
Councilperson Williams said, we can actually move it to the special meeting agenda for the 29th.
Nikolie: Sure. Williams: 29'""? That has to be 28th. Warren: 28" then.

2024-12 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF $1,000 TO FUND THE 2024
Introduced 3-26-24 HELICOPTER EASTER EGG DROPF, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

By Mayor and
Council as a whole

1% read 3-26-24

Nikolic: Did we decided the thousand dollars was going to be paid? What was the final
discussion?

Are there any comments? Do we agree that for this year we would continue. Then next year we
would adjust. Any comments? Warren: [ move that we go along with this one this time. And
then any corrections that we need to make in the future we do it. Because we're too far down the
river for this one. Williams: Mrs. Hardin you want to weigh in? I think maybe you should poll
the Council before you do that. Nikolic: I thought that's what I did. Hardin: I have a question,
the procedure is that instead of actual money in the egg. There's a note or something in it, and
you retrieve it? Thompson: Yes. Hardin: Just to make me feel a little better. The fact that they
have to retrieve it. Just a name I would feel better. Warren: And how much. Hardin: And how
much she gave out. And this is the last time. Warren: Right. Williams: It should be a name and
a... if we're going to document, it should be a name and a street address. And, if we are talking
about the auditor's original concern that we're using taxpayer dollars and they're not being
accounted for. Then we should have an address with that amount and the name if we are going
to. Hardin: Just a name and address, that's all. And we're not going to deny them this about
whether they're Cleveland, Oakwood or wherever. But just for point of reference that it was
collected from one of our employees. Thompson: Okay. Hardin: Then ['ll go along with it.
Gottschalk: And the weather might not be that good on Sunday. It’s going to be raining on a
Saturday evening and then Sunday morning. But at least there will be no wind for the helicopter.
But it could be a little damp. Hardin: Well, if that's the case, how are you going to do these
eggs then? What are you going to do with them? Gottschalk: Well, it's going to be done, but
there might not be that many. Matlock: If there’s weather does the helicopter still drop? Davis:
[t’s not supposed to, it’s supposed to rain all Saturday. Seruggs: Is there a...and I apologize, |
didn't think of this before. But is there a deadline someone has to turn in their receipt/ little
sheet? Is it like here’s the time frame it must be picked up by this date, just in case. Like the eggs
blew all over and then in September. Someone’s like hey, [ found a egg. Warren: Well, let me
just take another step for the Mayor. Send an email, please Council Clerk to the Recreation
Director. That any eggs that are not picked up should be collected. Because if there's eggs out
there that have a dollar amount in there and they're not collected. Then we don't account for the
money. Gottschalk: If they aren't used at that time, we're not doing anything with them.
Scruggs: He’s saying when she's sitting in her space waiting for someone to come. And she's
passing out the money, what is her time frame to say. Okay, after this time I'm no longer.
Hardin: After the today. Scruggs: Oh, is it the same day? Hardin: Yeah. Seruggs: Oh, okay.
Hardin: At the end of the event, that's the end of it. Williams: What is the process for you



withdrawing cash from our account? [s there someone who goes with you to get this withdrawal?
We should get a receipt that you withdrew those funds. Is there someone who counts it with you
to make sure is what it is? And then how are we tracking who's going to create that document
where we can track? Thompson: Yeah, I'm the signer on the accounts. So, I am eligible to
collect the dollars. I count it over with Carlean. And we'll follow through with this final
procedure like you said. To document those names, addresses, and returns from the eggs that
didn't get collected. Williams: Who would create the document? Thompsen: I’ll have Carlean
put the document together. I'l] have the receipt for cash. Williams: And then you're going to
give us the receipt and that document once that’s done? Thompson: Yes. Williams: And if
there's cash left over. Who is responsible for getting that back to the account with the document
for us to know what was deposited back? Thompson: We’ll deposit that right away and finance
it, assume it on a positive take into account. Williams: So, we'll have a report about that.
Thompson: Yes. Nikolic: Any other comments or questions about legislation 2024 Dash 127

Motion to suspend rules for legislation 2024-12 made by Warren seconded by Scruggs
YES VOTE: Williams, Davis, Matlock, Hardin, Scruggs, Nikolic, Warren
MOTION PASSED

Motion to adopt legislation 2024-12 made by Warren seconded by Scruggs
YES VOTE: Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Nikolic, Warren
ABSTAINED: Williams

MOTION PASSED

2024-13 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A REFUSE
Introduced 3-26-24 COLLECTION AND RECYCLE PROCESSING SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH WASTE
By Mayor and MANAGEMENT OF OHIOQ, INC., AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

Council as a whole

1 read 3-26-24

*moved to second reading

Williams: Who's responsible for this contract with Waste Management? Who maintains this or
discusses this with them, who’s the contact? Nikelic: [ think it was Tommy, he emailed it to us.
Williams: Can we find out why... I remember when I first started. It said that our costs didn't
increase with Waste Management because they have their facilities here, right? Because that
trash is basically housed in Oakwood Village. But our contract keeps going up. It went up by like
$10,000 in 2020. And we have rate increases for the next five years. So, I'd just like some
clarification around why it's continued to go up. At the rate it’s going up when they're actually in
Oakwood Village. There was supposed to be some type of offset for the fact that they were in
Oakwood. Warren: Well, one of the one of the offsets was the recycling revenues that they were
receiving. And the intake of trash from the outside communities. And so that was part of the
agreement that we have with them... Williams: It's not reflected in the contract. So, [ would like
some clarification. Warren: So, I'll take that as a second reading. Hardin: And the question was
also asked about the tipping fees, remember we asked. Nikolic: And also, the contract for the
tipping fees. Because at some point we need to look at where we are with those fees. Because [
believe you told Mrs. Hardin that it's about a wash, what we have to pay and what we're
receiving. So, I think it'd be a good time to review those fees to see if they should be increasing.



Because it shouldn't be a wash. If they're bringing their garbage here, we should be charging...
our fees should be much higher than we should have. We should see a substantial margin over
what we're paying, in my opinion. Any further discussion on legislation 2024-13? Hearing none,
that's on first read. Climer: And that concludes the agenda, for today. Madam President, I would
request an executive session executive session to consider the appointment, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of the public employers. Nikolic:
At this point an executive session is closed to the public. But we thank you for your time and
your participation. Williams: We are calling the Mayor and Brian in? Nikolic: Mayor, we'd like
to request your presence. Who else Candace? Williams: And Brian. Gottschalk: I have to leave.
Nikolic: Okay, we’ll fill you in. Williams: We can’t fill him in in an executive session. Nikolic:
Right, okay we’ll have another one. Do you need him? Do you want to see if he can stay for ten
minutes? Brian, you want to grab the Mayor and see if he could stay for ten minutes? So, we can
put whatever it is to rest, burning issues.

Motion to enter executive session to consider the appointment, employment, dismissal,
discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of the public employers made by Davis
seconded by Scruggs

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Entered Executive Session at 9:52p.m.

Motion to adjourn executive session to consider the appointment, employment, dismissal,
discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of the public employers made by Davis
seconded by Matlock

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Exited Executive Session at 12:01p.m.

Williams: [ would like to make or poll Council to see if we can nominate someone else to
supervise our Council Clerk going forward. Nikolic: And I'd like to say, can we just check with
the Law Director to see the full parameters of what is possible. And how we should go about that
process? And [ am for it, so whatever we're going to do. Is what the general body agrees to. But [
Jjust want to make sure that we're going about it in the legal way. And that we are aware of
everything in the Charter. Because I know that we all don't know the Charter. We can make
mistakes about what's in the Charter and what’s not in the Charter. So, [ would advise that we
consult the Law Director and make sure that we're doing it in the proper way. I make a second
motion. Second the motion. Okay. Roll call.

Motion to nominate someone on Council to supervise the Council Clerk made by Williams
seconded by Warren

YES VOTE: Scruggs, Warren, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams

NO VOTE: Nikolic

MOTION PASSED



Williams: s there anybody would like to act as a Supervisor for our Council Clerk? Hardin: [
will do it. Williams: I like to make a motion to nominate Eloise Hardin to supervise our Council
Clerk.

Hardin: Okay, what I also would like to do. I want Erica to parallel with me. Because she got to
learn. Nikolie: Listen, whatever the Council wants to do I am for it. But I voted no, just to be
clear.

And I could state I voted no to the previous motion. Because I wanted to have the Law Director’s
input before we made the motion. But that was my no vote. Hardin: My answer was ves, but |
want to caveat. [ will supervise the Clerk, so that this is very clear. I'll supervise the Clerk in its
totality and I'm in person. So, I'll be coming up, okay. But, you don't have to come up. But I do
want to parallel, until I feel that you have really got a full grasp of how it's supposed to work.
Nikolic: And I welcome the opportunity to be trained. And thank you for stepping up to do that,
thank you.

Motion to nominate Eloise Hardin to supervise our Council Clerk made by Williams seconded
by Davis

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Davis, Matlock, Williams

MOTION PASSED

Hardin: Before you adjourn, I'm going to say something. ['ve never done this before. We are
back in a regular council meeting, are we not? Everyone: Yes, ma'am. Hardin: The tape is
running. Warren: Yes, ma'am. Hardin: Okay, tonight on legislation 2024-12, It's the resolution
authorizing the appropriation of $1,000 to fund the 2024 helicopter Easter egg drop and
declaring it an emergency. I voted yes, it's going to pass anyway. But [ want to go on record,
changing my vote. Joseph: According to the Charter, once I've mentioned that the motion has
been approved you cannot change it. Hardin: Okay, well let me go on record. Davis: Can we
amended the vote? No, okay. Hardin: That's fine, that's fine. But for the record, I'd like to show
that, and I'll repeat 2024-12. My vote was a yes vote. But after really getting a grasp of where we
are. If given the opportunity, I would abstain, end of, quote. Warren: Just for future knowledge,
according to the Charter. We can't abstain, it's either yes or no. Nikolic: Where does it say that in
the Charter. Warren: You can ask her. Joseph: Charter shows that it's yes or no. It does not
mention that you can abstain from voting for legislation. Hardin: Oh, really? Nikolic: Go to
7.12. Hardin: Okay, let’s see that, this is a lesson. Warren: We have been abstaining before.
But somebody brought it to my attention. Matlock: It says Yes or No. Hardin: Okay, well again
I will elaborate on my concerns. I do want a note sent to finance. That I want compliance with
the stipulation. That documentation of who received the money, how much, and the address.
Warren: Yeah, we had that already. Hardin: I understand that, but [ personally want to make
sure 1 get a copy of it, thank you. Warren: Can I get a motion to adjourn? Williams: No,
because we need to set a meeting time for Thursday’s Special meeting. Davis: I have church
service at 6:30pm., so you guys want to do it earlier than that? Hardin: From 6;30 to 77 Davis:
No, the church starts at seven, but we're playing the bells at mass. So, I have to be there by
6:30pm. So, [ will be there from 6:30pm to 8pm. Williams: Taunya you have choir rehearsal?
Scruggs: Yeah, we’re usually done at 7pm. Hardin: What's the date of this Thursday date?
Warren: 28. Hardin: Oh, yeah he has to have it downtown by 5:00pm on Friday. Seruggs: |
can do earlier, like S5pm. Davis: I can do Spm, I can do 4pm. Warren: Let’s do Spm then, is that
okay? Williams: It looks like we'll have the permanent appropriations. I'll take out the 1099, we



don’t have to review the1099’s. We can wait until Monday. The City of Solon contract, and the
legislation to reduce Schade’s pay. It looks like we'll have three things on there, too. Hardin:
Okay, did we discuss the legislation to pay for the special audit? Williams: We did not discuss
it, but I did give it to everyone. 1 did, I'm sorry, I meant to do it last night, but we were here so
late. I asked the Law Director to do it. But because I didn't get it, I created it. So, I gave it to you.
Hardin: We got it, but we never dealt with it. Williams: The last two lines shouldn't be there. [
didn't mean to include those. So, we'll remove those and then we'll add that to it. I'll send it back
to him to review. It should be corrected. Hardin: So, that should be on the agenda? Williams:
Yes, that should be on the agenda. Hardin: Okay, and we have the one for Schade’s pay?
Williams: Yes, that should be on their too. And then the last thing is that do we want to go with
the account number levels. Or do we want to go with the salaries and others? It's up to us how we
budget. Matlock: I thought I heard Karen say something about it was to... was it just a salary?
Hardin: You can do a salary or a range. Williams: No, no we're talking about our budgetary
level. So, our budgetary level can either be salary and or. So right now, we're budgeting at one
level. That means he puts all the numbers into a big pot. Which at the last audit, if you
remember. They told us that budgetary level did not meet the level that it should for auditing
purposes. So, we were out of compliance. So, we have to fix it regardless. We have to choose
whether we want to do salary and other. Which means all of the salary for every single
department is in one column and everything else is in order. Or we can do account number level.
Which means he has to budget for every single account. That way we can see every time those
numbers change. Matlock: I like that one. Williams: Account number? Warren: mhm.
Williams: Okay. Warren: You wanted to say something? Joseph: Yeah, I' just wanted to bring
to Council's attention. We're supposed to be meeting with Max Miller on Friday. But then I just
found out that we don't work on Friday. Warren: Friday is Good Friday. Joseph: So, I don't
know if they didn't realize that either. Davis: I would cancel that. Joseph: [ was going to ask for
additional dates in April to see if we can reschedule. Because I know that some people won't be
able to even be here anyway. So, I just wanted to let you all know. I didn't know I wouldn't be
here either. Davis: | assumed (inaudible). Hardin: Yeah, just notify his office and remind him
that it's Good Friday that they gave us. And that we're closed on the Friday, and we can
reschedule. If you want, you can go ahead and reschedule it. Williams: And since we're all here,
our audit is only covering non payroll. We can request that they also cover payroll so that we
have a clean understanding of everything from 2017 to 2022. Matlock: I was looking in there, it
just said 2017 to May of 2022... Davis: Yeah, why does it stop at May 20200, may I ask?
Matlock: Is it a quarter or something? Williams: I'm not sure, we don't know why they're
asking. But what we can ask is that they also audit payroll. That way at least now from 2017 to
2022, all those years have been audit properly and thoroughly. Matlock: However, you want it.
Williams: I'm just asking if everybody is on board with that. Hardin: Is there a dollar amount
for what they are going to charge for what they are doing? Davis: And then also can we ask
about credit cards? Warren: Somebody else is doing that. Seruggs: The question over here is
about the word... Matlock: The wording of it. Seruggs: The engagement letter describes the
arrangement between the village of Oakwood and the auditor of the state. So, the question is was
this set up by somebody? Or I want to know what triggered it. Matlock: What triggered it, and it
says the auditor of state, including the objective and scope of the services we will provide. The
Village require involvement in the systems in support of our services. The related fee
arrangements and other terms and conditions. Designed to ensure that our professional services
satisfy the Village's special audit needs. We will conduct the audit of Village non payroil



disbursements. From the period of January 1st, 2017 to May 31st, 2022 period. We are pleased to
confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter.
The objective of the Special Audit will be to examine certain disbursements made by the Village.
During the period to determine whether disbursements were supported and for purposes related
to the operations of the Village. Did somebody... Williams: This is a special investigation, so
what I read when [ went to their site about what this unit does. This is a special investigation
unit. That was created for government fraud specifically. They act off of tips, when they get the
tips, they investigate the tip. | was trying to print it so that we could read it, but the way they
have the site is like drop down menus, and when it opens up, you really can't print from it like
overlay. So, I couldn't get a clean print. So, when they get the tip, did they investigate it? If they
find things that they feel look like they are fraud. Then they will investigate further. When they
investigate further, if it leads them to believe they need to open a case. Then that's what they do.
Matlock: Okay, I was just looking at this. When it says we conduct our audit in accordance with
the Auditor of State Special Investigations Units quality standards. So that's what I'm looking at.
Like is this...Warren: They an independent contractor... Williams: No, this is actually the
auditors. This is not like Julian and Groove, that’s independent. This is actually the state, this is
the state's office. Warren: We don't always have to pay... Williams: We do have to pay them.
That's why they sent it, to tell us their coming to audit. Nikolic: $13,000. Williams: And this is
what you're going to pay and you're going to pay us on time. Matlock: Yeah, I'm looking at this,
but I'm saying... Okay, when an audit comes, and you are audited. I'm looking at the fee, do they
normally charge a fee for audit? [f an auditor coming from you, from the state. They shouldn't be
charging no fee. They’re going to come in on your craft and start going through your books.
Williams: No, the Auditors charge us too. Every time we get audited, we pay them a fee too. All
of our audits cost us. Matlock: T never seen, | mean... Williams: Yeah, it could be, that’s the
other problem. We've never created the legislation and there should be because we paid them.
Warren: But one thing that we know is that is worth $13,000. Matlock: And we could clean
this up and then we hopefully we won't have this issue anymore. Warren: Right. Davis: Just
waiting 1s, one more thing though. We asked for that on Schade’s... he's going to give us a new
thing to vote on, correct? For the compensation of him. Because we said no PERS and it didn't
say that in the contract. It just talks about a pay, it doesn’t say that he will not get PERS, he will
not get sick time and all that stuff. Williams: What he said was in the contract, it doesn't
stipulate benefits. Matlock: 1 thought he said he was putting that... Davis: I thought you said he
was putting it in an ordinance. Is what he told us. Williams: I thought he said he wasn’t because
in the contract it doesn’t stipulate benefits. Does anybody else remember? Nikolic: The contract
says he will not get sick pay, vacation pay, etc.... is that what we are talking about. Matlock:
Yeah. Nikolic: It says that in the contract. Warren: When we were talking about PERS. I think
somebody was saying he's getting paid PERS off of $1. (inaudible due to everyone talking at
same time). Nikolic: Before we adjourn, Council person Williams. [ will do my research to
figure out where that information came from. In regard to me controlling the agenda, because I
got it from somewhere. And it was my understanding that whoever told me it came from the
charter. So, if I misspoke in the meeting, that was, you know, my mistake. But I will do research
to identify where that information came from. Because as a new person, | cannot show up here
and assume duties that weren't instructed to me. So, I just want to be clear going forward, I'm
open to be trained. I welcome all of you to advise me and to train me in any way that you see fit.
Devising proper training is well for Mrs. Scruggs. We are open and willing to be trained and
open to your advice. Williams: 1 would like to add that to the list for all of us. When I came in, |



didn't get training, either. You’re going over Robert’s Rules of Orders and, you know, technical
things are helpful as a start. But that doesn't tell me how to legislate as a Council person. And I
really think that that's something that we need to put into a work session. And have a real
conversation about... like for instance, you should go through a budgetary training in Council for
this Village. You shouldn't have to go to Ohio Municipal League for that. We should know what
we do here care enough to be able to tell the incoming Council person. So, I definitely think that
we need to add that to a work session and make sure we prepare people to be successful.
Nikolic: And [ support that, just please know that I'm all for it. And please always come to me
with feedback because I'm open to working with all of you. Hardin: We crossed every T and dot
every to eye. One of the things we didn't do this year and that's not her fault. We're supposed to
as a Council every year. We vote to see if we will be governed by Robert’s Rules. We have to
adopt Robert's Rules. Matlock: I thought we did. Warren: It’s ion the Charter she said.
Williams: The Charter or the ordinances? Because it is not in the Charter. There’s a difference
between the Charter and Codified Ordinance. Davis: It says on this paper here Schade will be
paid $1 per year. I thought we said $1 per paycheck per month. (inaudible due to everyone
talking at same time).

Motion to adjourn made by Warren seconded by Scruggs

YES VOTE: Nikolic, Warren, Scruggs, Hardin, Matlock, Davis, Williams
MOTION PASSED

Adjourned at 12:26 a.m.
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